
AGENDA FOR

PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

Contact:: Keren Murphy
Direct Line: 0161 2535130
E-mail: k.m.murphy@bury.gov.uk
Web Site: www.bury.gov.uk

To: All Members of Planning Control Committee

Councillors : J Black, S Briggs, D Jones, A Matthews, 
A Quinn, S Southworth, Y Wright, R Skillen, C Preston, E 
O'Brien, J Harris, R Hodkinson and M D'Albert

Dear Member/Colleague

Planning Control Committee

You are invited to attend a meeting of the Planning Control 
Committee which will be held as follows:-

Date: Tuesday, 27 October 2015

Place: Peel Room, Bury Town Hall

Time: 7.00 pm

Briefing

Facilities:

If Opposition Members and Co-opted Members require 
briefing on any particular item on the Agenda, the 
appropriate Director/Senior Officer originating the 
related report should be contacted.

The Development Manager will brief the Committee on 
any changes made to the Planning Applications to be 
considered since the issue of the Agenda.  This 
information will also be provided in the supplementary 
agenda which will be circulated to Members and made 
available to the public on the Council’s Website on the 
day of the meeting.

Notes: Food will be available from 5.00 pm (Balcony Bar)
Pre-meeting briefing at 5.45 pm (Lancaster Room)
Details of Site Visits/Member Training will be circulated 
separately, for the information of Members and 
Officers.

Public Document Pack



The Agenda and Reports for the meeting are attached.

The Agenda and Reports are available on the Council’s Intranet for 
Councillors and Officers and on the Council’s Website at 
www.bury.gov.uk – Council and Democracy.

Yours sincerely

MIKE OWEN
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

http://www.bury.gov.uk/


AGENDA

1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

Members of the Planning Control Committee are asked to consider 
whether they have an interest in any of the matters on the Agenda and, if 
so, to formally declare that interest.

3  MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 29 SEPTEMBER, 2015  (Pages 
1 - 4)

4  PLANNING APPLICATIONS  (Pages 5 - 96)

5  DELEGATED DECISIONS  (Pages 97 - 108)

A report from the Head of Development Management on recent Planning 
Appeal decisions since the last meeting of the Planning Control Committee 
on 29 September, 2015.

6  PLANNING ENFORCEMENT  (Pages 109 - 114)

A report from the Head of Development Management providing 
statistical information on Enforcement activity between 1 July, 2015 
and 30 September, 2015.

7  URGENT BUSINESS  

Any other business which by reason of special circumstances the Chair 
agrees may be considered as a matter of urgency.



This page is intentionally left blank



247

Minutes of: PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE

Date of Meeting: 29 September, 2015

Present: Councillor S Southworth (In the Chair) 
Councillors  M D’Albert, J Harris, R Hodkinson, D 

Jones, A Matthews, E O’Brien, R Skillen and Y Wright

Public attendance:  65 members of the public were in attendance 

Apologies for 
absence:  Councillors J Black, S Briggs, C Preston and A Quinn

________________________________________________________________________

PCC.357 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest made at the meeting.

PCC.358      MINUTES

Delegated decision:

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 1 September, 2015 be approved 
as a correct record and signed by the Chair.

PCC.359 PLANNING APPLICATIONS

A report from the Development Manager was submitted in relation to the 
applications for planning permission.  Supplementary information was also 
submitted in respect of application numbers: 58342; 58655; 58805; 
58874; 59051 and 59058.

The Committee heard representations from applicants and/or objectors in 
respect of the applications submitted.  This was limited to three minutes 
for each speaker. 

Councillor Bayley spoke as ward representative on planning application 
58655 and Councillors Caserta and Mallon spoke as ward representative in 
respect of planning application 58874 (note: Councillor Mallon represents 
Pilkington Park ward and was permitted to speak on application 58874 as 
the Pilkington Park would be affected by the application).

Prior to the Committee meeting, a Site Visit had taken place in relation to 
Planning Application 58874.

Delegated decisions:

1. That Approval be given to the following applications in accordance with 
the reasons put forward by the Head of Development Management in the 
report and supplementary information submitted and subject to the 
conditions included:
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



248

Planning Control Committee, 29 September 2015

58805 Land between 99 and 133 Crostons Road and Tottington 
Road, Bury - Bury West - Elton Ward
Erection of 9 no. Dwellings

Note: The decision to Approve with Conditions is subject to the addition of 
the following condition:-

Condition 15: Notwithstanding the provisions of the approved plans, no 
development shall commence on plots 1 - 5 inclusive until a scheme that 
ensures that the eaves height and ridge heights of plots 1 - 5 inclusive are 
similar to that of No. 10 Tottington Road has been submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Only the approved 
scheme shall be implemented.
Reason. To ensure that the development delivers a good design pursuant 
to Policy EN1/1 - Townscape and Built Design of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan.

(Note: Councillor Wright was not present during the debate and did not 
take part in the vote on this application)

59058 Land adjacent to 5 West Avenue, Whitefield, Manchester - 
Whitefield and Unsworth - Pilkington Park Ward
Outline - Demolition of existing building and erection of 4 no. dwellings

(Note: Councillor Wright was not present during the debate and did not 
take part in the vote on this application)

2. That the Committee be Minded to Approve the following application in 
accordance with the reasons put forward by the Head of Development 
Management in the report and supplementary information submitted and 
subject to the conditions included:

58324 Land adjacent to Eton Business Park, Bury Road, Radcliffe, 
Manchester - Radcliffe East Ward
Residential development of 18 no. dwellings

(Note: Councillor Wright was not present during the debate and did not 
 take part in the vote on this application)

58655 Land at Valley Park Road/Clifton Road, Prestwich, 
Manchester - Prestwich - St Mary's Ward
Erection of 97 no. residential units (Class C3) comprising 67 no. dwellings 
and 30 no. apartments with associates landscaping, access arrangements 
and car parking and substation and creation of pond and woodland walk 
and seating area

3. That the following application be Deferred for a site visit and be 
considered at the next scheduled meeting of the Planning Control 
Committee:-

59051 116 Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester - Whitefield 
and Unsworth - Besses Ward

Page 2



249

Planning Control Committee, 29 September 2015

Retrospective application for change of use of part of ground floor from 
offices (A2) to taxi booking office (Sui Generis)

Note: Prior to consideration of the application, Councillor Matthews 
proposed that this application be deferred subject to a site visit. This 
proposal was seconded by Councillor Jones.  The Committee voted against 
the proposal at this stage.  Following hearing from the speakers and a 
debate by Members and prior to the vote, Councillor Jones proposed a site 
visit which was seconded by Councillor Matthews. The Committee voted in 
favour of this proposal).

4. That the following application be Refused:-

58874 Whitefield Golf Club, Higher Lane, Whitefield, Manchester - 
Whitefield and Unsworth - Pilkington Park Ward
Erection of 1 no. 30m (hub) high, 45m (tip) high wind turbine plus 
ancillary development

PCC.360 DELEGATED DECISIONS

A report from the Development Manager was submitted listing all recent 
Planning application decisions made by Officers using delegated powers.  

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

PCC.361 PLANNING APPEALS

A report from the Head of Development Management was submitted which 
presented a list of recent planning appeal lodged against the decision of 
the authority and of a recent Planning Appeal decision. 

Delegated decision:

That the report be noted.

CHAIR
COUNCILLOR SUSAN SOUTHWORTH

(Note: The meeting started at 7.00 pm and ended at 8.20 pm)

Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



  
 
 
Title 
 

 
Planning Applications 

To: 
 

Planning Control Committee 

On: 
 

27 October 2015 

By: 
 

Development Manager 

Status: 
 

For Publication 

 
Executive Summary 
 
The attached reports present members with a description of various planning applications, the 
results of consultations, relevant policies, site history and issues involved. 
 
My recommendations in each case are given in the attached reports. 
 
This report has the following implications 
 
Township Forum/ Ward: 
 

Identified in each case. 

Policy: 
 

Identified in each case. 

Resources: 
 

Not generally applicable. 

Equality Act 2010:  All planning applications are considered in light of the Equality Act 2010 and 
associated Public Sector Equality Duty, where the Council is required to have due regard for: 
The elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation; 
The advancement of equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant protected 
characteristic and person who do not share it; 
The fostering of good relations between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic 
and person who do not share it; which applies to people from the protected equality groups.    
    
Human Rights:  All planning applications are considered against the provisions of the Human 
Rights Act 1998. 
 
Under Article 6 the applicants (and those third parties who have made representations) have the 
right to a fair hearing and to this end full consideration will be given to their comments. 
 
Article 8 and Protocol 1 of the First Article confer a right to respect private and family life and a 
right to the protection of property, ie peaceful enjoyment of one's possessions which could include 
a person's home, and other land and business assets. 
 
In taking account of the Council policy as set out in the Bury Unitary Development Plan 1997 and 
all material planning considerations, I have concluded on balance that the rights conferred upon 
the applicant/ objectors/ residents/ other interested party by Article 8 and Article 1 of the First 
Protocol may be interfered with, since such interference is in accordance with the law and is 
justified in the public interest. Any restriction of these rights posed by refusal/ approval of the 
application is legitimate since it is proportionate to the wider benefits of such a decision, is based 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



upon the merits of the proposal, and falls within the margin of discretion afforded to the Council 
under the Town & Country Planning Acts. 
 
 
 
Development Manager 
 
Background Documents 
 
1. The planning application forms and plans submitted therewith. 
2. Certificates relating to the ownership. 
3. Letters and Documents from objectors or other interested parties. 
4. Responses from Consultees. 
 
 
FOR FURTHER INFORMATION ON THE CONTENTS OF EACH REPORT PLEASE CONTACT 
INDIVIDUAL CASE OFFICERS IDENTIFIED IN EACH CASE. 
 

Page 6



 
01  Township Forum - Ward:  Bury East - Redvales App No.   58866 
 
  Location: Site of former Fishpool County Infants School, Parkhills Road, Bury, BL9 

9AP 
  Proposal: Residential development - 8 no. dwellings 
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
02  Township Forum - Ward:  Bury East App No.   58985 
 
  Location: Site of Hartshead Works, Deal Street, Bury, BL9 7PU 
  Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and residential development comprising 39 

no. dwellings (15 no. houses and 24 no. apartments), new access from 
Deal Street, carparking and landscaping 

  Recommendation: Minded to Approve  Site 
Visit: 

N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
03  Township Forum - Ward:  Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses App No.   59051 
 
  Location: 116 Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6AD 
  Proposal: Retrospective application for change of use of part of ground floor from 

offices (A2) to taxi booking office (Sui Generis) 
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
Y 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
04  Township Forum - Ward:  Bury East App No.   59111 
 
  Location: Bury Art Gallery, Moss Street, Bury, BL9 0DF 
  Proposal: Listed building consent to extend the temporary consent for sculptures 

installed in the alcoves at the front of the sculpture centre and library 
entrance to 5 years 
 

  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 
Visit: 

N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
05  Township Forum - Ward:  Radcliffe - East App No.   59193 
 
  Location: Site of former Whittaker House, Parsonage Street/Whittaker Street, 

Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 2TD 
  Proposal: Erection of two storey residential building comprising 6 no. supported 

living apartments (Class C3) 
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
06  Township Forum - Ward:  Prestwich - Sedgley App No.   59202 
 
  Location: 111 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0EQ 
  Proposal: Single storey extension at side; Two storey extension at rear; Entrance 

porch at front/side; External works and 2 no. additional parking spaces 

Page 7



  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 
Visit: 

N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 
07  Township Forum - Ward:  Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth App No.   59224 
 
  Location: The Hollins, Haweswater Crescent, Bury, BL9 8LT 
  Proposal: Substitution of house types to plots 3,4,11,20 & 21 following grant of 

planning permission ref. 56860 
  Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions  Site 

Visit: 
N 

        
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

Page 8



  
 
Ward: Bury East - Redvales Item   01 

 
Applicant:  Avantgarde (UK) Limited 
 
Location: Site of former Fishpool County Infants School, Parkhills Road, Bury, BL9 9AP 

 
Proposal: Residential development - 8 no. dwellings 
 
Application Ref:   58866/Full Target Date:  17/09/2015 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The site is currently vacant and was part of the former Fishpool County Infant School. The 
site is located between Devon Street and Nelson Street. There is a brick wall along the 
frontage with Parkhills Road. 
 
There are residential properties to all boundaries and a primary school is located to the 
south east of the site.  
 
The proposed development involves the erection of 8 dwellings, which would front onto 
Parkhills Road. The proposed dwellings would be two storeys in height with living 
accommodation in the roof space. The proposed dwellings would be constructed form red 
brick with a tile roof. Vehicular access would be taken from Nelson Street and pedestrian 
access would be taken from Parkhills Road. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
40405 - Road closure to link school sites at Fishpool & St Chad's Primary School, Nelson 
Street, Bury. Approved with conditions - 23 April 2003 
 
42890 - Demolition of former fishpool school; provision of new car park and junior 
playground and associated site work. Alterations and extension to St Luke's Primary School 
and associated site works at St Luke's Primary School (Former Fishpool and St Chad's 
School), Nelson Street, Bury. Approved with conditions - 3 September 2004 
 
44241- Outline - residential development at part of former Fishpool Infants School, Parkhills 
Road, Bury. Approved with conditions - 6 June 2005. 
 
48716 - Residential development - 8 dwellings at part of site of former Fishpool School, 
Parkhills Road, Bury. Refused - 11 January 2008 
 
49460 - Erection of 8 dwellings (resubmission of 48716) at part of site of former Fishpool 
School, Parkhills Road, Bury. Approved with conditions - 28 March 2008 
 
53609 - Application to extend the time limit for implementation of planning permission 49460 
for 8 no. dwellings at Former Fishpool School, Parkhills Road, Bury.  Approved with 
conditions - 10 March 2011 
 
Publicity 
23 neighbouring properties (39 - 61 (odds), The Moss, Vanstone,  40, 70 Parkhills Road; 
58 - 62 (evens) Devon Street, 9, 11, 15 Sultan Street; St Luke's C of E Primary School, 
Morley Street were notified by means of a letter on 24 July 2015. 
 
2 letters have been recieved from the occupiers of 55 and 70 Parkhills Road, which have 
raised the following issues: 
• There are not enough parking spaces currently, even with permit parking.  
• The trees reduce the sunlight to existing properties and the proposed dwellings would 

Page 9



make it worse. 
• Building more houses would cause damage to the foundations of the existing houses. 
• Double yellow lines are on the road to limit usage for the safety of the childfren walking 

to school 
• The access to the car park should be located off Devon Street. 
 
The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting. 
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to waiting 
restrictions, construction management plan, turning facilities, car parking and measures to 
prevent mud from passing onto the highway. 
Drainage Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of condition relating to foul and 
surface water drainage. 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to contaminated land. 
Designforsecurity - No response. 
United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to foul and 
surface water drainage. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN2 Conservation and Listed Buildings 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle - Following revocation of the North West Regional Strategy on 20 May 2013, 
there is no statutory housing target for Bury. Work has commenced on the Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework and this will bring forward a new statutory housing target for 
the Borough. This will subsequently be incorporated into Bury’s future Local Plan.  
 
In the meantime, the National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a material 
planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the 
supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. There is a 
particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a rolling five year 
supply of deliverable housing land.  
 
Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a 
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban 

Page 10



area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, 
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses. 
 
The site is located within the urban boundary and within a residential area. Planning 
permission was granted for residential development in 2005, 2008 and 2011. The proposed 
development would not conflict with the surrounding uses and is in a sustainable location 
with good access to public transport and services. The site formed part of a school, which 
has been demolished and as such, is previously developed land. Therefore, the proposed 
development would be acceptable in principle and would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Design and layout - The proposed development would provide a terrace of 8 dwellings, 
which would be constructed from red brick with a tile roof. The use of headers, cills, 
canopies and dormers would add visual interest to the elevations. As such, the proposed 
development would not be a prominent feature within the locality. 
 
All of the proposed dwellings would have a rear garden which would provide a suitable level 
of private amenity space. There would be space within the rear gardens for bin storage. The 
brick wall along the frontage with Parkhills Road would be retained with gates inserted to 
provide access to the proposed dwellings. 1.8 metre high timber fencing would be provided 
to the rear gardens, which would be acceptable and would match other fencing in the area. 
Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2, H2/1 
and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Impact upon residential amenity - SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between 
residential properties and as such, would be relevant in this case. 
 
There would be between 28.5 and 29.5 metres between the proposed dwellings and Nos 41 
- 53 Parkhills Road and between 35 and 39 metres form the rear elevation of the proposed 
dwellings to the dwellings on Sultan Street, which are beyond the playground. Both of these 
distances would be in excess of the 23 metre aspect standard. 
 
There would be 17 metres from The Moss to the gable of plot 1 and 28 metres from No. 70 
Parkhills Road to the gable of plot 8, which would be in excess of the 16 metre aspect 
standard.  
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not have an adverse impact upon the 
residnetial amenity of the neighbouring properties and would be in accordance with Policies 
H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Highways issues - The proposed development would be accessed from the existing 
turning head on Nelson Street. There would be the required level of visibility. The Traffic 
Section has no objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to waiting 
restrictions, construction management plan, turning facilities, car parking and measures to 
prevent mud from passing onto the highway. Therefore, the proposed development would 
not be detrimental to highway safety and would be in accordance with Policies H2/1 and 
H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum number of parking spaces is 3 spaces per 4 bed 
unit within a high access area. This equates to 24 spaces. 
 
The proposed development would provide 8 spaces. Currently, there are parking restrictions 
on Parkhills Road immediately adjacent to the site, which restricts parking between school 
drop off and pick up times on Mondays to Fridays.  
 
The parking restrictions were put into place when the school was operating and has since 
been demolished. As such, it may be possible to lift these restrictions, subject to the 
required legal process, which would allow on-street parking directly in front of the property. 
The site has good access to public transport and services within the local shopping centre.  

Page 11



 
Given that the removal of the parking restrictions, the access to public transport and the 
close proximity to a shopping centre, it is considered that the level of parking provision 
would be acceptable in this instance. Therefore, the proposed development would be in 
accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the  Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Response to objectors 
The issues relating to parking, daylight and access have been addressed in the main report 
above. The issue relating to damage to foundations of the existing dwellings during 
construction is not a material planning consideration and would be covered by Building 
Control. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to 
identify various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal 
comprised sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and 
environmental conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. 
These were incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning 
condition. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement 
in Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered 14037-LP, 14047-101, 14047-102 

Rev A, 14047-103, 14047-104 and the development shall not be carried out 
except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
3. Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations, 

together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development 
is commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for the 
construction of the development. 
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity. 

 
4. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
Page 12



and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
5. Following the provisions of Condition 4 of this planning permission, where 

remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 
6. No development shall commence unless or until details of foul and surface water 

drainage aspects, including an assessment of potential SuDS options for surface 
water drainage with calculations to support the chosen solution, have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved details shall be implemented and be available for use before first 
occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. 
Reason. No details have been provided and to ensure a satisfactory means of 
drainage pursuant to Policy EN7/5 - Waste Water Management of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan. 

 
7. Prior to first occupation of any of the dwellings hereby approved, a scheme for the 

review of the existing waiting restrictions on Parkhills Road in the vicinity of the site 
shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
scheme shall include details of the measures proposed, all necessary 
modifications to road markings and signage and a timetable for implementation. 
Reason. To mitigate the impact of any visitor parking that is likely to be generated 
by the proposed development on the adjacent residential streets pursuant to the 
following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design. 

 
8. No development shall commence unless and until a ‘Construction Traffic 

Management Plan’ (CTMP) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority. The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the 
construction period and shall ensure that there is provision to be made for the 
turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within the curtilage of the site, parking on-site 
of operatives' and construction vehicles together with storage on-site of 
construction materials. The provision shall be retained and used for the intended 
purpose for the duration of the construction period and the areas identified shall 
not be used for any other purposes other than the turning and parking of vehicles 
and storage of construction materials respectively. 
Reason. The scheme does not provide details of the route for construction and to 
mitigate the impact of the construction traffic generated by the proposed 
development on the adjacent streets, in the interests of highway safety pursuant to 
the following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design. 

 
9. The access alterations indicated on approved plan reference 14047-102 Revision 

A shall be implemented to an agreed specification before the development is 
commenced/site access is brought into use 

Page 13



Reason. To ensure good highway design in the interests of road safety pursuant to 
the following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design. 

 
10. The turning facilities indicated on approved plan reference 14047-102 Revision A 

shall be provided before the development is first occupied and the areas used for 
the manoeuvring of vehicles shall subsequently be maintained free of obstruction 
at all times 
Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the 
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to the following Policies of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development 
Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design. 

 
11. The car parking indicated on approved plan reference 14047-102 Revision A shall 

be surfaced, demarcated and made available for use prior to the development 
hereby approved being occupied and thereafter maintained at all times 
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
12. Before the development is commenced, details shall be submitted to and 

approved by the Local Planning Authority to cover measures to ensure that all 
mud and other loose materials are not carried on the wheels and chassis of any 
vehicles leaving the site and measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by the 
operations. The approved details shall be implemented and maintained thereafter 
during the period of construction. 
Reason. No details have been provided and to ensure that the adopted highways 
are kept free of deposited material from the ground works operations pursuant to 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253 
5322

Page 14



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 58866

Site of Fishpool County Infants School
Parkhills Road
Bury

1:1250



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

Primary School

St Luke's CE

Reid Centre

22

30

26

24

11

75

84

19

38

23

46

36

35

61

43

25

26
24

14

132a
2

12

15

3

41

49

22

37

36

27

24

12

Club

2

13

81

23

3125

27

29

73

70

72

62

83

84

15

179

3

5

1

19

11

7

41

58

51

59

81

86

76

69

73

74

71

25

25

P
ark C

ottage

The Moss

Vanstone

48

29

36
34

39

60

70

55

74

55a

PW

53

WOODLEY STREET

N
E

L
S

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

G
R

O
S

V
E

N
O

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

N
E

L
S

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

B
A

C
K

 N
E

L
S

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 S
O

U
T

H

B
A

C
K

 N
E

L
S

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 N
O

R
T

H

BACK P
ARKHILLS R

OAD S
OUTH

BACK P
ARKHILLS R

OAD N
ORTH

D
E

V
O

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

C
K

 D
E

V
O

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

O
U

T
H

SULTAN STREET

B
A

C
K

 D
E

V
O

N
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 N

O
R

T
H

B
A

C
K

 H
O

R
N

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 S

O
U

T
H

82.3m

81.7m

82.0m

Viewpoints

1

2

3

4

Page 15



58866 

 

Photo 1

 

Photo 2

 

Page 16



58866 

 

Photo 3

 

Photo 4

 

Page 17



P
age 18



P
age 19



P
age 20



 
 
  
 
Ward: Bury East Item   02 

 
Applicant:  MCI Developments Limited 
 
Location: Site of Hartshead Works, Deal Street, Bury, BL9 7PU 

 
Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and residential development comprising 39 no. 

dwellings (15 no. houses and 24 no. apartments), new access from Deal Street, 
carparking and landscaping 

 
Application Ref:   58985/Full Target Date:  16/10/2015 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
It is recommended that this application is Minded to Approve subject to the signing 
and completion of a Section 106 agreement for Affordable Housing in accordance 
with Policy H4/1 of the UDP and SPD5.  If the agreement is not signed within a 
reasonable timeframe, then delegated authority is sought by the Development 
Manager to determine the application. 
 
The application has been brought to Planning Committee as it would be contrary to 
the requirements of UDP Policy RT2/2 and SPD1. 
 
Description 
The application involves a site which is currently occupied by a B2 business, and comprises 
a 2/3 storey brick building positioned on the northern area of the site, with parking and 
service yard to the south.  There are several access points and the site is bounded by a 
mix of brick built walls and palisade fencing.    
 
The site is classed under UDP Policy EC2/2 - Employment Land and Premises Outside the 
Employment Generating Areas, and has been identified in the Council's Employment Land 
Review as unsuitable for retention as an employment site.  
 
The surrounding area is predominantly residential in character, with dwellings on all sides, 
comprising older social housing stock and a newer development in a mix of 2 storey 
dwellings and apartment buildings, of a modern/contemporary style.  
 
The proposal seeks the demolition of the building and its redevelopment to provide a 
residential development for a 100% Affordable Housing Scheme, comprising 39 no. 
dwellings in total, consisting of 15 no. houses and 24 no. apartments, with a new access 
from Deal Street, parking and landscaping.  
 
The dwellings would be 2 storey in height arranged in pairs of semis and one row of 3, and 
would offer 2 bed accommodation with one curtilage parking space (2 spaces for plot 2), 
private garden areas and bin stores.  The apartment block would be 3 storey in height and 
comprise 12 x 2 bed and 12 x 1 bed, each with 1 allocated parking space and communal bin 
store.  (The dwellings are annotated on plan as plots 1-15, and apartments as 16-39). 
 
There would be one access into the site off Deal Street which would lead to a cul de sac 
type arrangement, with only plots 14 and 15 in the south eastern part of the site being 
accessed from the street.     
 
Boundary treatment around the periphery of the site would be a mix of 2.1m high brick and 
piers to the north where the site would abut the back street, and 1.2m high bow top railings 
and retaining wall along the public frontages of deal street and maxwell Street.  To the 

Page 21



east, the existing brick wall would be utilised and made good where necessary.   
 
Relevant Planning History 
01605/E - Demolition of all existing buildings and construction of a residential scheme of 
development comprising one three storey apartment block containing 24 apartments along 
with 10 mews houses and 6 semi-detached houses and associated infrastructure  - Enquiry 
completed 20/02/2015 
 
Publicity 
56 letters sent on 17/7/2015 to properties on Maxwell Street, Shaw Street, Deal Street, 
Rowan Drive, Chestnut Avenue. 
Site notice posted 19/8/2015. 
Press advert in the Bury Times 30/7/2015. 
 
Comment from No 750 Deal Street 
• Totally support the demolition and new houses - but object to the apartments being run 

by a Housing Association and the bad tenants it would accommodate.    
• Do not want change in the area; 
 
Support letter received from No 13 Rowan Drive with the following comments: 
• Support the application 100%; 
• Would like to see a condition to install gating to the back roads; 
• Complaints of fly tipping and anti social behaviour in the back streets - hopes the 

application approved for the removal of this eyesore at the rear of Rowan Drive. 
 
Comment from No 38 Maxwell Street: 
• Are there plans to incorporate the back street of former Crabtree Street (now Rowan 

Drive) which backs into the development.  The back street has for many years and 
continues to be a dumping ground, overgrown with weeds and dog faceas.  the area 
would be better without it.  

 
Those who have expressed an interest have been informed of the Planning Control 
Committee meeting. 
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objection subject to conditions. 
Drainage Section - No objection subject to condition. 
Environmental Health Contaminated Land - No objection subject to conditions. 
Waste Management - Bin storage area will need to accommodate 4 x 1100ltr bins in total 
for the 3 weekly service.  2 for residual waste and 2 for recycling 
Environment Agency - No formal response required. 
Greater Manchester Police - designforsecurity - The application is supported subject to 
the development designed and constructed in accordance with the recommendations of the 
submitted Crime Impact Statement dated 17/7/15 and by Secured by design standards. 
United Utilities (Water and Waste) - No objection subject to condition. 
Electricity North West Ltd - The applicant is advised to contact ENW in regard to potential 
impact on infrastructure.  An informative to the applicant would be included.  
Fire Protection Dept Bury Fire Station (Part B) - Standing advice received and included 
as an informative to the applicant. 
The Coal Authority -  The site is located within a low risk area. No objection  
Greater Manchester Ecology Unit - No objection subject to a condition requiring a license 
or statement by Natural England to authorise the acceptability of commencement of the 
development. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
EC2/2 Employment Land and Premises 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 

Page 22



H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
H4/1 Affordable Housing 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/5 Crime Prevention 
RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
HT6/2 Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict 
SPD5 DC Policy Guidance Note 5: Affordable Housing 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
SPD16 Design and Layout of New Development in Bury 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Land use principle - Whilst the site is in an existing employment use, it has been identified 
in the Council's Employment Land Review as unsuitable for retention as an Employment 
site.  In principle, redevelopment for residential purposes is therefore considered to be 
acceptable. 
 
Housing principle - Following revocation of the North West Regional Strategy on 20th May 
2013, there is no statutory housing target for Bury.  Work has commenced on the Greater 
Manchester Spatial framework and this will bring forward a new statutory housing target for 
the Borough.  This will subsequently be incorporated into Bury's future Local Plan. 
 
In the meantime, the National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a material 
consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the supply 
of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term.  There is a 
particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a rolling five year 
supply of deliverable housing land.  
 
In terms of the location and relationship of the proposed development to the surrounding 
area, the following UDP Policies are relevant, the details of which are discussed in the 
report below.  
 
UDP Policy H1/2 - Further Housing development states that the council will have regard to 
various factors when assessing a proposal for residential development, including whether 
the proposal is within the urban area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of 
the site, with regard to amenity, the nature of the local environment and the surrounding 
land uses.   
 
UDP Policies H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development and H2/2 - The Layout of 
New Residential Development takes into consideration factors relating to the height and roof 
type of adjacent buildings, the impact of developments on residential amenity, the density 
and character of the surrounding area and the position and proximity of neighbouring 
properties.  Regard is also given to parking provision and access, landscaping and 
protection of trees/hedgerows and external areas. 
 
Supplementary Planning Document 6 - Alterations and Extensions to Residential Properties 
provides useful guidance in terms of acceptable aspect standards between dwellings and 
design criteria.  

Page 23



 
The site is located within an established residential area with dwellinghouses surrounding all 
boundaries of the site.  There is existing infrastructure in place to support the scale of the 
development and the nature and character of the local area and surrounding land uses 
would be compatible with the proposals.  The development would contribute to meeting 
local housing needs, and in particular would contribute to Affordable Housing provision in 
the Borough. 
 
As such, the principle is considered to be acceptable and would be in compliance with the 
NPPF and UDP Policies H1/2, H2/1 and H2/2. 
 
Details of the layout, design, proximity to residential properties and access and parking are 
discussed below.  
 
Layout - The site has two main street frontages, to the south with Maxwell Street and to the 
west with Deal Street.  There are 2 back streets that run parallel to the north and east of 
the site which connect to the main streets, to create a rectangular plot.  This has largely 
dictated the position of the proposed properties in relation to the surrounding area and the 
cul de sac type layout and density of the scheme. 
 
The apartment block would face onto Deal Street and would be set back into the site to 
create a grassed area at the front, bounded by a retaining wall and bow top railings.  
Access would be off Deal Street to the north of the apartment block, with a pair of semi 
detached houses on the opposite side, also fronting Deal Street.  The remainder of the 
houses, apart from the semis fronting Maxwell Street to the south, would be accessed 
internally, laid out in 2 rows along the north and eastern boundaries and facing into the site. 
 
Each dwellinghouse would have a private garden area, bin store area and dedicated 
driveway parking for one car (apart from plot 2 with double space parking).  Gardens would 
be separated by a mix of 1.5m and 1.8m timber fencing. 
 
There would be a row of parking spaces to the side and rear of the apartment block, with 
one space allocated per unit. Outdoor amenity area for the apartments would be fairly 
limited, comprising the grassed area which surrounds the building.  However, Hoyles park 
is only 150m away, and provides quality open space for the local area.  it would be within 
walking distance from the site, and as such considered would provide usable outdoor 
amenity for the development.  Two timber bin stores would be located to the north of the 
building for communal use.   
 
The layout of the site and arrangement of the properties have been designed to emulate the 
character of the surrounding properties.  The development would offer modest sized 
housing accommodation which would be reflective of the context of the residential area. 
 
As such, the proposals are considered to be acceptable and comply with UDP Policies H2/1 
and H2/2. 
 
Design and appearance - The proposed dwellings would comprise one row of 3 mews type 
and 6 pairs of semi detached 2 storey, 2 bedroom properties.  The scale and massing of 
the houses and the ridge and eaves heights would be similar to the established housing 
estate surrounding the site, as well as reflecting the form of the newer builds on Shaw 
Street, Rowan Drive and Maxwell Street.   
 
The properties would be modest yet contemporary in design, with canopied headed 
doorways, contrasting detailed brickwork and featured panelling between the ground and 
first floor windows, reflective of the linear and vertical fenestrations found on the more 
recently housing development built nearby. 
 
The apartment block would also have a contemporary appearance, presenting piked roof 
detailing to both the front and rear elevations, linear and symmetrical window fenestration 

Page 24



patterns and juliette railings to the middle row of full length windows. 
 
The area is characterised by both older housing stock and a more contemporary and 
modern housing development, which feature a variety of different styles and materials. 
Materials proposed for the development would be red facing blend brickwork, smooth red 
detail brick, grey roof tiles and white window frames and rainwater goods, which are 
considered to be in keeping in the area.   
 
As such, it is considered the design and appearance of the proposed properties would be in 
keeping with the local vernacular and in compliance with UDP Policies EN1/2 and H2/1. 
 
Impact on residential amenity  - SPD 6 contains supplementary guidance on 
householder extensions and is the yardstick used when assessing  relationships to new 
residential development.  A separation distance of 20m between habitable room windows 
and 13m between a principal ground floor habitable room window and a 2 storey blank wall 
is generally considered to be an acceptable minimum distance.  Where there is a difference 
in levels between 2 properties, or additional storeys in height, an increased separation 
distance would be sought.  
 
The 3 storey apartments would be sited directly opposite houses on Deal Street which are 2 
storey in height and as such a minimum separation of 23m would be sought.  There would 
be 23.7m and as such aspect standards satisfied. 
 
There would be a distance of 20m between the 2 storey houses on plots 1 and 2 to No 93 
Deal Street and therefore in compliance with aspect standards.  
 
To the north of the site, the closest relationship would be plot 3 to No 62 Shaw Street at 
19.8m, which is 0.2m short of the requirement.  The existing 2 storey building currently sits 
directly abutting the back edge of pavement only 14m away from Shaw Street.  Whilst there 
are no windows on this elevation, it is somewhat unsightly and does not present a 
particularly attractive outlook. Given  the development would be set further back into the 
site, and that it would be domestic in character, the separation is considered to be 
acceptable.  
 
In terms of relationship of the development to houses on Rowan Drive, aspect standards 
would be satisfied, as would the position of plots 14 and 15 on Maxwell Street.  The side 
elevation of the apartment block adjacent to Maxwell Street would have an oblique 
relationship to No 32 and there would be no direct overlooking into habitable room windows. 
 
As such, it is considered that there would not be concerns regarding the relationship to the 
existing houses adjacent to the site and the development would comply with H2/1 and SPD 
6. 
 
Access and parking - Vehicular access would be directly from Deal Street, and lead into a 
cul de sac type arrangement with a turning area.  The scale and character of the scheme is 
such that it is likely that less traffic, and far fewer HGV trips, would be generated than from 
the existing commercial and industrial business.  
 
Pedestrian access would be via a newly created footway on both sides of the access road 
which would lead to the individual dwellings and the rear entrance of the apartment block. 
 
SPD11 - Parking Standards in Bury, states the maximum provision in high access areas is 
1.5 spaces for 2 bedroom properties and 1 space per 1 bed unit.  The development would 
provide for one space per property (apart from 2 spaces for plot 2).  
 
The site is in a highly sustainable area, with local shops and public transport links to the 
town centre nearby.   The scheme is for relatively modest sized accommodation, which is 
less likely to appeal to attract 2 car ownership.  The Highways Section have not objected to 
either the access or parking provisions.  Given the sustainable location and the 

Page 25



deliverability of much needed Affordable Housing in the area, it is considered that the 
parking and access proposed is acceptable.  
 
Ecology - An Ecological Appraisal has been submitted and GMEU consulted on the 
findings. 
 
Bats -    The buildings on site have been assessed for bat roosting potential.  A further 
emergence survey was recommended by GMEU which identified the presence of  a 
common pipistrelle bat in building 1.  Whilst GMEU have not objected, a condition would be 
included that a license or authorisation from Natural England be obtained prior to the 
commencement of development.  
 
Birds - The only other ecological consideration relates to nesting birds.  GMEU have 
recommended that a detailed bird nest survey be carried out dependant on the timetable for 
demolition of the building, as well as the submission of a landscaping plan to mitigate fro 
loss of bird nesting habitat, and these would be included as a condition of a permission. 
 
No other significant constraints have been identified on this site which is generally of very 
low ecological value. 
 
Servicing and bin storage - The bin store for the apartments would be sited to the north of 
the building and accessed from the pedestrian footway which runs alongside the turning 
head inside the development. For the dwelling houses, bins would be brought to the front of 
the properties for collection, apart from Plot 4 and 14 whose waste would be collected via 
the back roads, which are adopted.   
 
The waste management team have raised no objection to the proposals, and advise the 
applicant of bin storage requirements for the apartment block.  
 
Contributions - The development proposes 100% affordable homes for local people, which 
the applicant intends would be managed by a locally approved Registered Provider.  At this 
time, the LPA is not aware that such an agreement is in place.  
 
The applicant has stated that given the development would be for affordable housing, there 
is no proposal to offer a contribution to fulfill the requirements of providing recreation 
provision in line with SPD1.  A viability appraisal has been submitted with the application in 
support of this, and has been assessed by the LPA. 
 
The site will deliver 39 much needed affordable units through a registered Provider and 
bring further investment and regeneration into east Ward.  If the scheme were to fulfill the 
requirements for recreation provision, it would not come forward for affordable units.  As 
such, and on balance, it is considered that the benefits of the development scheme would 
offset the requirements for recreation provision in this case, and as such is considered to be 
acceptable.  
 
However, to ensure that the development could only be built out for affordable housing, the 
applicant has agreed to enter into a S106 Legal Agreement which would secure the scheme 
would deliver 100% affordable housing accommodation.  
 
Response to objectors/commentators - The personal characteristics of future 
tenants/occupiers is not a material planning consideration. 
The back streets referred to, to the north and east of the site are outside the red edge and 
do not form part of the development proposals.  The back street is adopted and its 
maintenance and upkeep is the responsibility of the Council.  
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 

Page 26



The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to 
identify various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal 
comprised sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and 
environmental conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. 
These were incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning 
condition. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement 
in Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation: Minded to Approve 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered DealSt/LOC; DEALST/SLAB  Rev A; 

DealSt/SK02 Rev D; DealSt/Boundary Rev B;  DealSt/Materials Rev A; Deal 
St/Streetscenes Rev A; DealSt/Apt 16-39; DealSt/2B4P 70/01; DealSt/2B4P 
70/02; DealSt/Wall/1; DealSt/Wall/2.1; DealSt/Railings/0.9; DealSt/Fence/CB1.8; 
DealSt/Railings/1.2; DealSt/Fence/1.5; DealSt/Fence/1.8; Topographical Survey 
MCI.TS.58;  Design and Access Statement July 2015; Planning Statement July 
2015; Preliminary Ecological Appraisal July 2015 UES01542/01; Bat 
Presence/Absence Survey 13th October 2015 UES01542/02; Crime Impact 
Statement Version A July 2915; PRA Summary report June 2015  and the 
development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings 
hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
3. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason. The reason for pre-commencement conditions is that the information was 
not adequately provided at application stage.  To secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment.  

 
4. Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where 

remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  

 
Page 27



5. No development shall commence unless and until design details of foul and 
surface water drainage have been submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority.  This must include appropriate calculations to support the 
chosen SuDS solution, which should be in accordance with the strategy outlined in 
the submitted SuDS Statement.  Only the approved details shall be implemented 
and thereafter maintained.  
Reason.  The current application contains insufficient information regarding the 
proposed drainage scheme to fully assess the impact to ensure a satisfactory form 
of development and to prevent an undue increase in surface water run-off and to 
reduce the risk of flooding pursuant to chapter 10 - Meeting the challenge of 
climate change, flooding and coastal change of the NPPF. 

 
6. No demolition or building works shall occur between the 1st March and 31st 

August in any year unless a detailed bird nest survey by a suitably experienced 
ecologist has been carried out immediately prior to such works and written 
confirmation provided that no active bird nests are present, which has been 
approved by the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  

 
7. A landscape management plan and timetable for implementation shall be 

submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of development.  The contents of the plan should include 
elements to mitigate for loss of bird nesting in the form of nesting opportunities for 
house sparrow.  The approved plan shall be implemented in accordance with the 
approved details.   Any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming severely 
damaged or becoming severely diseased within five years of planting shall be 
replaced by trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those originally required 
to be planted to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. Details have not been submitted with the application to secure the 
satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of visual amenity pursuant 
to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 – Woodland and Tree 
Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
8. No development shall commence unless and until: 

a) a license issued by Natural England pursuant to Regulation 53, of the 
Conservation of habitats and Species Regulations 2010 authorising the specified 
activity/development go ahead: or 
b) a statement in writing from the relevant licensing body to the effect that it does 
not consider that the specified development will require a license; 
has been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority  
Reason. The information has not been submitted at the time of the application 
inorder to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species pursuant to 
policies EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – Features of 
Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and Section 11 of the 
National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
9. Notwithstanding proposed materials shown on plan number DealSt/Materials, all 

samples of the proposed materials to be used in the external elevations, together 
with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is 
commenced. Only the approved materials shall be used for the construction of the 
development. 
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN1/2 Visual Amenity. 
 

Page 28



 
10. Notwithstanding the details indicated on the approved site layout plan, no 

development  shall commence unless and until full details of the following have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority: 

• Formation of the proposed site access onto Deal Street and new 
footway crossings onto Maxwell Street; 

• Proposed estate road and turning head and associated swept path 
analysis; 

• Reinstatement of all redundant accesses around the perimeter of 
the site and all associated highway remedial works; 

• Full reconstruction of the easterly Deal Street footway abutting the 
site; 

• Full reconstruction of the footways abutting the site along the 
northerly and easterly site boundaries; 

• All alterations to the existing traffic calming affected by the new 
vehicular access arrangements; 

• Street lighting scheme for the proposed residential development 
and any alterations/improvements to existing street lighting required 
at the junction of the proposed site access with Deal Street; 

 
The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to an agreed 
programme. 
Reason.  Details have not been submitted at application stage to ensure 
good highway design and maintain the integrity of the adopted highway in 
the interests of highway safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan 
Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development, EN1/2 - 
Townscape and Built Design and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict. 

 
11. No development shall commence unless and until a 'Construction Traffic 

Management plan' (CTMP), has been submitted to and approved in writing by the 
Local Planning Authority.  The approved plan shall be adhered to throughout the 
construction period and shall provide for: 

• Access route for construction traffic from the adopted highway; 
• Temporary warning/speed limit signage on the access route;   
• Hours of operation and number of vehicle movements;   
• Arrangements for the turning and manoeuvring of vehicles within 

the curtilage of the site. 
Reason.  Details not submitted at application stage to ensure mitigation of the 
impact of the construction traffic generated by the proposed development on the 
adjacent streets, in the interests of highway safety, pursuant to Bury unitary 
Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design, HT2/4 - Car 
Parking and Servicing and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict. 

 
12. The footway visibility splays indicated on the approved plans shall be implemented 

before the development is first occupied and subsequently maintained free of 
obstruction above the height of 0.6m 
Reason. To ensure the intervisibility of the users of the site and the adjacent 
highways in the interests of road safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development 
Plan Policy HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict and EN1/2 - Townscape and 
Built Design. 

 
13. The turning facilities indicated on the approved plans shall be provided before the 

development is first occupied and shall subsequently be maintained free of 
obstruction at all times. 
Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the 
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to Bury Unitary Development Plan 
Policies H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development, EN1/2 - Townscape 
and Built Design and HT6/2 - Pedestrian/Vehicular Conflict. 

 
Page 29



14. Minimum hard standing lengths of 5m at dwellings abutting the existing and 
proposed adopted highway shall be provided and thereafter maintained. 
Reason. To allow adequate space to maintain a vehicle clear of the highway in the 
interests of pedestrian safety pursuant to Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New 
Residential Development of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
15. The car parking on the approved plan shall be surfaced, demarcated and made 

available for use  prior to the part of the development hereby approved to which it 
relates being occupied and thereafter maintained at all times.   
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
16. Before the development is commenced, details shall be submitted to and 

approved by the Local Planning authority to ensure there is provision to be made 
for the parking on site of operatives' and construction vehicles, together with 
storage on site of construction materials.  The provision shall be retained and 
used for the intended purpose for the duration of the construction period and the 
areas identified shall not be used for any other purposes other than the parking of 
vehicles and storage of construction materials respectively.  
Reason.  Details have not been submitted at application stage to ensure 
adequate off street car parking provision and materials storage arrangements for 
the duration of the construction period, in the interests of highway safety pursuant 
to Bury Unitary Development Plan Policies EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design. 

 
17. No development shall commence unless and until details have been submitted to 

and approved by the Local planning Authority to cover measures to ensure that all 
mud and other loose materials are not carried on the wheels and chassis of any 
vehicles leaving the site and measures to minimise dust nuisance caused by 
operations.  the approved details shall be implemented and maintained thereafter 
during the period of construction. 
Reason. The application does not contain details to ensure that the adopted 
highways are kept free of deposited material from the ground works operations 
pursuant to Bury unitary Development plan Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built 
Design.   

 
For further information on the application please contact Jennie Townsend on 0161 
253-5320

Page 30



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 58985

Site of Hartshead Works, Deal Street
Bury

1:1250



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

TCBs

LB

72

59

70

90

13
3

12
1

10

112

34

26

84

82

25

101

17

212
220

230 232

PO

44

57

9
1

63

16

2

42

52

50

55

32

85

60
72

93

Works

99

83 83a

2

168

217

223

233

PH

192

210
200

227

86
47

32

42

25

El Sub Sta

35

90

79

91

160

93

77

65

44

172

58

67

144 to 148

45

97

150

47

32
30

55

179

110

PH

38

68a

69d

26a

28b
28

49

39

71

75
a

53

75

60

75
d

30

30b

27

37

77

63

76
80

82

71

78

48

74

76

70

New

R
O

W
A

N
 D

R
IV

E

SHAW STREET

MAXWELL STREET

C
H

E
S

T
N

U
T

 A
V

E
N

U
E

BELL LANE

BACK BELL LANE

H
IG

H
E

R
 R

O
W

D
E

A
L

 S
T

R
E

E
T

CEDAR

BACK CEDAR STREET

STREET

P
IN

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T
 N

O
R

T
H

SHAW STREET

103.3m

97.8m

107.3m

106.4m

103.3m

Viewpoints

1

2
3

6

4

5

Page 31



58985 

 

Photo 1

 

Photo 2

 

Page 32



58985 

 

Photo 3

 

Photo 4

 

Page 33



58985 

 

Photo 5

 

Photo 6

 

Page 34



Page 35



Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



 
 
  
 
Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses Item   03 

 
Applicant: Mr Ali Khan 
 
Location: 116 Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6AD 

 
Proposal: Retrospective application for change of use of part of ground floor from offices (A2) to 

taxi booking office (Sui Generis) 
 
Application Ref:   59051/Full Target Date:  25/09/2015 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
This application was deffered at the meeting on 29 September 2015 for a site visit. 
 
Description 
The site is part of a two storey brick building located at the end of a row of terraces on York 
Street.  The front elevation faces on to Bury New Road and has a glazed shop front and 
entrance.  Immediately outside is a controlled crossing.  The adjoining premises is 
commercial and the site is within Whitefield District Centre.  There are residential properties 
to the rear terraced streets and directly opposite. 
 
The application is retrospective and relates to the ground floor which is being operated as a 
private hire booking office.  The service is for telephone bookings only with no customers or 
private hire drivers visiting.  The business operates 24 hours a day with 2 full time staff and 
3 part time.       
 
Relevant Planning History 
20178/87 – Change of use from shop/living accommodation to 2 No. shop units with offices 
over and new shop fronts at 116 & 116A Bury New Road, Whitefield. AC -12/11/87. 
48509 - Change of use of ground floor from shop (Use Class A) to Estate Agency (Use 
Class A2); Modification of external elevation - AC 02/10/07. 
59052 - Retrospective application for retention of 1 no. non-illuminated hoarding sign on 
front elevation - Refused 08/09/15. 
 
Publicity - 28 notification letters were sent to addresses at 114, 114A, 116, 118, First Floor 
118, 120, 155, 155A, 157, 159, 161, 163,  165, Flats 1&2 165 Bury New Road, Higher Lane 
County Primary.  Wilson & Garden Ltd, York Street, Photo & Optical York Street.  
1,1A,2,3,4 York Street, 3-9 Livsey Street.   
 
Two objections have been received from 157 & 159 Bury New Road their concerns in 
summary are:- 
• Since the office opened, on street parking on Egerton Road, which was difficult, has 

become almost impossible. 
• Taxis park on both sides of Egerton Road blocking the path.  There are saloon cars and 

8 & 14 seat mini buses. 
• A residents parking scheme may help. 
• There have been drivers outside at all hours and drunken customers waiting outside at 

weekends. 
• This is planning permission via the back door and very underhand by both the business 

and the Council. 
• Vehicles park on the pavement next to the fence to No.157 restricting maintenance to 

the property. 
• A large advertising board has been erected opposite the window to No.157 which is 

Page 40



inappropriate and the largest sign on Bury New road.  It brings down the value of the 
property. 

• One side of No.157 overlooks a massage parlour with boarded windows.  In 30 years 
nothing positive has been done.  Who approved this mess ?   

 
The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.  
 
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section -  No objection. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
HT2/8 Taxi and Private Hire Businesses 
S1/3 Shopping in District Centres 
S2/4 Control of Non-Retail Uses in All Other Areas 
EC4/1 Small Businesses 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
 
Issues and Analysis 
 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Policy - Policy S2/4 states that outside the main shopping area of town and district centres, 
changes of use from a retail shop to a non-retail use will be permitted, subject to the 
proposal being appropriate in scale and character to the area and the proposal should not 
result in an over concentration or grouping of uses. The proposal should retain the display 
window and allow for access for the mobility impaired.  Adequate servicing and parking 
should be provided. 
 
UDP Policy HT2/8 - Taxi and Private Hire Businesses states that proposals for taxi or 
private hire businesses will be looked upon favourably providing that adequate car parking 
is provided for employees and vehicles used in connection with the business, there will not 
be an unacceptable adverse effect on the amenities of neighbouring residents or occupiers 
or the local highway network, in terms of road safety and traffic circulation. 
 
The site is not located within either the primary or secondary shopping area of the district 
centre and would not result in the loss of an A1 use with previous permission for A2 
granted.  It would not lead to an over-concentration of the use and as a sui generis use any 
further change would require an application and allow further assessment.  
 
The premises has an existing shop front and display window which would maintain an active 
frontage.  The restriction on the customers visiting the premises would mean that the use 
would not rely on or create any footfall.  However the unit is located towards the end of 
what is a large district centre and it would provide a service that would be appropriate within 
a local area.  Therefore, it is considered that the proposed development would not harm the 
vitality and viability of the district centre and would not conflict with the aims of Policies S1/3 
and S2/4 of the adopted Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Parking and Access - There is no dedicated parking to the premises.  The private hire 
vehicles are owned by the drivers themselves and kept at their own residences at the end of 
a shift.  All fees due to the office by the drivers are collected from their residences.  With 
no visiting customers, only the booking staff would be at the premises.  The number 

Page 41



employed would be similar to that of a retail use where parking would have to be on street 
within the area or staff make use of public transport which the area has high level access to.  
Also the site has benefit of a lawful A2 use where it would be expected that staff would 
generate some level of traffic.   
 
The front entrance does not have disabled access and the agent has stated that it would not 
be practical to modify it.  However there are no visiting members of the public proposed for 
the scheme.  
 
Visual amenity - No external alterations are proposed.  The frontage has a glazed window 
with a fascia sign above the shop.  The board sign adjacent the entrance was refused 
under a separate advert application and has now been removed.  As such it is not 
considered that the proposed development would look out of place within the locality.  
 
Residential amenity - The use would operate 24 hours.  With the business based on 
telephone bookings and without customers or hire car drivers visiting the premises, the use 
is not one that would give rise to any noise or disturbance above the existing activity within 
the district centre.  This system of operation would be reinforced by a condition restricting 
the use to telephone bookings and restricting customer and driver facilities on the premises.  
The proposed development would be in accordance with the UDP Policies listed.  
 
Response to objection - The issues relating to noise and traffic are addressed in the 
above report.   
On street parking and residents parking schemes are not matters under planning control. 
The large advertising board refused under application 59052 and has now been removed. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. This decision relates to drawings numbered Sheet 1, Sheet 2 and the 
development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings 
hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
2. The use hereby approved shall be limited solely to telephone bookings. There 

shall be no facilities at the premises for customer pick up, driver waiting or rest and 
refreshment. 
Reason: The use relies upon on-street parking and therefore in the interests of 
residential amenity and highway safety pursuant to UDP Policy HT2/8 Taxi and 
Private Hire Businesses. 

 
3. No private hire vehicles belonging to the applicant or those belonging to freelance 

drivers operating through the communications system at the premises, shall attend 
the office hereby permitted, including for the purposes of waiting or taking orders 
and instruction, collecting clients or for the purpose of taking refreshment.  
Reason: The use relies upon on-street parking and therefore in the interests of 
residential amenity and highway safety pursuant to UDP Policy HT2/8 Taxi and 

Page 42



Private Hire Businesses. 
 
For further information on the application please contact Jane Langan on 0161 253 5316

Page 43



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 59051

116 Bury New Road
Whitefield

1:1250



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

41

17

29

24

34

14

11

116

15

2

1

1

6

118

13
9

1

14
1

13
7

4

3114

15
5

14
7

Surgery

132

144

17
3

1

14

15

2

8

7

15
7

2

18
3

Pleasley

Inn
(PH)New Grove

17
7

26

20

1

12

11

2

32

23

11

2

12

24

34

23

1

Charnley Mews

146 4

33

Victoria Park (Besses)

BIL
L L

ANE

LIV
SEY S

TREET

YORK STREET

D
U

C
IE

 S
T

R
E

E
T

C
L
A

R
E

N
D

O
N

 S
T

R
E

E
T

KNOW
SLEY R

OAD

EGERTON R
OAD

106.7m

107.3m

107.9m

1

Viewpoints

Page 44



59051 

 

Photo 1

 

Page 45



Page 46



 
 
  
 
Ward: Bury East Item   04 

 
Applicant:  Bury Art Museum 
 
Location: Bury Art Gallery, Moss Street, Bury, BL9 0DF 

 
Proposal: Listed building consent to extend the temporary consent for sculptures installed in the 

alcoves at the front of the sculpture centre and library entrance to 5 years 
 

 
Application Ref:   59111/Listed Building 

Consent 
Target Date:  13/10/2015 

 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The application relates to the Central Library, Sculpture Centre, Museum and Art Gallery in 
Bury, which is a Grade II Listed Building located within the Bury Town Centre Conservation 
Area. The adjacent building to the south is Textile Hall which is linked by a corridor to the 
library. The building is located at the corner of Moss Street and Silver Street and the art 
gallery and museum front onto Moss Street. 
 
The building is an example of a neo-classical design and architecture dating back to 1901. It 
is two storey and constructed in stone blocks and ashlar with a multi hipped slate roof and 
has a basement level containing the museum and archives which is accessed from Moss 
Street. The main entrance to the library/sculpture centre is not the original lobby, it was 
added to the building around the late 1970's, and is accessed off Manchester Road via a set 
of stone steps with handrails. 
 
Following the grant of listed building consent for internal alterations in January 2014, part of 
the library now forms the sculpture centre. 
 
The site is bounded by several listed buildings - St Mary's Place, Manchester Road, St 
Marie's RC Church, the Art Picture House, the former Barclays Bank, the Fusiliers Museum 
and the war memorial. 
 
Listed building consent was granted in September 2014 for the installation of 2 metal 
sculptures within the alcove to each side of the entrance to the library and sculpture centre 
for a period of 12 months. The sculptures were 'free-form' in design and are constructed 
from a powder coated aluminium frame with lightwewight floral elements in a range of bright 
colours attached. Each of the sculptures are fixed to 2 points in the alcove and each fixing 
consists of 3 metal studs.  
 
The proposed development involves the retention of the 2 existing sclptures for a period of 5 
years, which would result in their removal on 3 September 2019. The reason given for the 
extension is that the sculptures have played an important role in highlighting the Irwell 
Sculpture Trail and in guiding visitors to the exhibitions and venue. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
43990 - Listed building consent - neon text artwork on gable wall fronting Back Knowsley 
Street 3.3 metres long by 0.23 metres deep at Bury Art Gallery, Moss Street, Bury. 
Approved with conditions - 18 March 2005. 
 
52443 - Replacement of existing main entrance doors and frame; replacement of 4 windows 
to right hand gable elevation; pointing and new rainwater goods at Public Library, Art 

Page 47



Gallery and Museum, Moss Street, Bury. Approved with conditions - 28 May 2010 
 
52535 - Listed building consent for the replacement of existing main entrance doors and 
frame; replacement of 4 windows to right hand gable elevation; pointing and new rainwater 
goods at Public Library, Art Gallery and Museum, Moss Street, Bury. Approved with 
conditions - 28 May 2010 
 
56987 - Listed building consent - Schedule of works include; stud partitions removed, new 
stud walls between archways, curved partition wall creating new entrance corridor for 
library, automated single door and set of double doors installed between library and 
sculpture centre, uplifting carpet tiles and reinstate original parquet floor, new carpet tiles to 
new library area, new led spotlighting to sculpture area, decoration thoughout at Bury 
Central Library, Manchester Road, Bury. Approved with conditions - 22 January 2014. 
 
57725 - Listed building application for installation of temporary sculpture (12 months) in 
alcoves at front of sculpture centre and library entrance at Bury Art Museum, Moss Street, 
Bury. Approved with conditions - 3 September 2014. 
 
Publicity 
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 20 August and a press 
notice was published in the Bury Times on 27 August. Site notices were posted on 19 
August 2015. 
 
1 letter has been recieved from Bury Unitarian Church, which has raised the following 
issues: 
• The church building and gardens look towards the sculptures and we consider that the 

sculptures are too large for the alcoves in which they have been placed. 
• The sculptures do not match the architecture of the building and are incongrous. 
 
The objector has been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting.  
 
Consultations 
Ancient Monuments Society - No response. 
Council for British Archaeology - No response. 
The Georgian Group - No response. 
Society for the Protection of Ancient Buildings - No response. 
The 20th Century Society - No response. 
The Victorian Society (London) - No response. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
EN2/1 Character of Conservation Areas 
EN2/2 Conservation Area Control 
EN2/3 Listed Buildings 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Design and impact upon the listed building - The NPPF states that when determining 
applications for heritage assets, local planning authorities should take account of: 
• the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of the heritage assets and 

putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation; 
Page 48



• the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable 
communities including their economic vitality; and 

• the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness. 

 
When considering the impact of a proposal on the 'significance of a designated heritage 
asset',  great weight should be given to the asset's conservation. The more important the 
asset, the greater the weight should be. 'Significance' can be harmed or lost through 
alteration or destruction of the heritage asset or development within its setting. As heritage 
assets are irreplaceable, any harm or loss should require clear and convincing justification. 
 
Therefore, in order to assess the impact of the proposed development upon the listed 
building, the significance and appearance of the building must be assessed first. 
 
The building is of grand neo-classical design with two main, highly detailed and decorated 
elevations to Silver Street and Moss Street. The Moss Street entrance provides access to 
the art gallery and the Silver Street entrance provides access to the newly completed 
sculpture centre and library. The building comprises two tall storeys with a basement level 
set in a well, and this level contains the museum and archive. The building is square in form 
and is constructed in stone blocks of both plan and rusticated ashlar, with a slate covered 
multi-hipped roof. The ground floor level is set above street level and is accessed by stone 
steps.  
 
The Silver Street elevation is symmetrical, with two projecting bays containing ionic 
columns, cruciform windows, strong string courses, decorated friezes and figures and above 
eaves level, these are topped by tall bays with decorated pediments with balconies and 
balustrades. Between the bays is a central entrance set forward of the first floor and formed 
from a three arch arcade with a central doorway and alcoves to each side with balustrades.  
 
Therefore, the significance of the building is in: 
• The completeness of the building's exterior design and level of preservation; 
• The building's scale and impact on the streetscene; 
• It's neo-classical detailing and level of decoration; 
• The Victorian interpretation of classical orders and novel re-working of traditional design 

combinations; 
• It's contribution to the character of the area through its location, impact and relationship 

with other buildings of the 19th/20th century. 
 
The proposed development would consist of the retention of two sculptures which are 
currently located within the alcoves to the sides of the entrance on Silver Street. The 
proposed artwork is modern in design and as such, would represent a departure from the 
traditional design of the building. 
 
Paragraph 58 of the NPPF states that 'developments should respond to local character and 
history, and reflect the identity of local surroundings and materials, while not preventing or 
discouraging appropriate innovation.' 
 
The artwork is striking and modern in design but would represent appropriate innovation 
detailed within paragraph 58. The modern sculptures make it clear that these are a modern 
addition to the building but not so large and are so located to enable the building behind to 
be read. The artwork is located within the alcoves and as such, are not be visible from the 
wider streetscene views of the building and Conservation Area. The artwork announces the 
location and function of the sculpture centre, which has secured the use of the listed 
building and has had a positive impact upon the Cultural Quarter of the town centre. The 
proposed development would involve the retention of the artwork for a 5 year period and as 
such, without permanent damage or impact upon the design and character of the listed 
building. 
 
The proposed sculptures would be attached to the building at two points by a bracket with 3 

Page 49



screws. As such, the impact of the proposed development upon the fabric of the listed 
building would be localised to 12 holes from screws in the short term. The proposed 
development states that these holes would be made good with mortar to match the 
stonework, which would be controlled by a condition. Therefore, the proposed development 
would not cause any long term damage to the fabric of the building.  
 
Therefore, the proposed development would represent an addition to the building, but would 
preserve and enhance the character of the Grade II listed building and the conservation 
area. The proposed development would be in accordance with Policy EN1/2, EN2/1, EN2/2 
and EN2/3 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority offered solutions to the applicant in order to make the 
development acceptable. The applicant was however unwilling to amend the plans. Without 
these amendments the development would not improve the economic, social and 
environmental conditions of the area and therefore does not comprise sustainable 
development. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than the expiration of three years 
beginning with the date of this permission.  
Reason - Required to be imposed pursuant to Section 18 of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to all plans and supporting documents received on 30 June 

2014 and the development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the 
drawings hereby approved. 
Reason. For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
4. When the artwork is removed after a period of 3 years from the date of the 

decision, the works hereby permitted shall be reversed and the building shall as far 
as practicable be restored to the condition in which it was immediately prior to the 
carrying out of the permitted works. The details of the reversal works shall be 
submitted and approved in writing and only the approved works shall be carried 
out. 
Reason. In order to preserve features of special architectural or historical interest 
and as provided for under Section 17(1) (a) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253 
5322

Page 50



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 59111

Bury Art Gallery
Moss Street, Bury

1:1250



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

D Fn

Kay Monument

War Memorial

Fountain

LBs

Lester House

Victoria Buildings

13

9

PC

Tourist Information Centre

8

6

3

1

Townside Primary Care Centre

2

Interchange

Bury

1

14

Bury Interchange

17

PH

34

Club

21

16

15

Arts and Crafts

19

12

2 to 6

16
 1

4

Th
e 

E
xc

ha
ng

e

21

Unitarian
Bury

8

Works

Church

(Library Annexe)

2

18 to 20

4
21

15 to 17

11

and Museum

House

PH

22

17

40

28

Athenaeum

30

13

20
 1

8

Derby Hall

3 2

19

Textile Hall

26

Bury School of

46

Art Gallery

Maple

PH

Public Library

15

10

18

5

8

22

Station
Bolton Street

Royal Hotel

St Marie's

Job Centre

10 to 12

Presby

1 to 3

Bank

2

RC Church

Castle Leisure Centre

Town Hall

Car Park

Kay Garden

S
pa

rr
ow

 P
ar

k

Library Gardens

S
M

SM

Tunnel

E
as

t L
an

ca
sh

ire
 R

ai
lw

ay

ANGOULEME WAY

BROAD STREET

B
A

C
K

 M
A

R
K

E
T

 S
T
R

E
E

T

MOSS STREET

H
A

Y
M

A
R

K
E

T
 S

T
R

E
E

T

B
A

C
K

 M
A

R
K

E
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

 W
E

S
T

BACK BROAD STREET

M
A

R
K

E
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

S
T

R
E

E
T

S
IL

V
E

R

BACK ST MARY'S PLACE

TENTERD
EN STREET

B
A

C
K

 M
A

N
C

H
E

S
T

E
R

 R
O

A
D

M
A

N
C

H
E

S
T
E

R
 R

O
A

D

ST MARY'S PLACE

B
A

C
K

 K
N

O
W

S
L
E

Y
 S

T
R

E
E

T

WAYANGOULEME

BACK TEN
TER

DEN STR
EET

B
A

C
K

 S
IL

V
E

R
 S

T
R

E
E

T

BANK STREET

PARKS YARD

Subway

95.1m

95.6m

95.4m

Viewpoints

1

2

Page 51



59111 

 

Photo 1

 

Photo 2

 

Page 52



Page 53



 
 
  
 
Ward: Radcliffe - East Item   05 

 
Applicant:  HB Villages Developments Limited 
 
Location: Site of former Whittaker House, Parsonage Street/Whittaker Street, Radcliffe, 

Manchester, M26 2TD 
 

Proposal: Erection of two storey residential building comprising 6 no. supported living 
apartments (Class C3) 

 
Application Ref:   59193/Full Target Date:  02/11/2015 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The site is that of the former Whittaker House, which was previously used as a care home 
for the elderly.  Whittaker House was a single storey building, which was constructed from 
red brick with a tile roof. There are mature trees along the boundary with the canal to the 
north. The site is currently accessed from Whittaker Street and the turning head for 
Parsonage Street is adjacent to the site. 
 
The site is bounded by residential properties to the east, south and west. The boundary to 
the north is marked by the Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal with residential properties 
beyond. 
 
Planning permission (57362) was granted in May 2014 for the demolition of Whittaker 
House and the erection of supported living accommodation (14 apartments) and a higher 
complex care building (6 apartments) on part of the site. Permission (57710) was granted in 
August 2014 for the erection of 11 affordable dwellings on the remainder of the Whittaker 
House site. Whittaker House has recently been demolished in accordance with application 
57362. Further investigations have revealed a large storm water culvert passes underneath 
the southern part of the site. Due to the required easements, the approved building for 
higher complex care cannot be constructed in the approved position.  
 
The proposed development involves the erection of a two storey residential building 
comprising 6 no. supported living apartments (Class C3). The proposed building would be 
located in the southern part of the site and would be two storeys in height. The proposed 
building would be constructed from red brick with a grey tile. The site would be accessed 
from Parsonage Street. 
 
Supported living accommodation is specifically designed for vulnerable persons who may 
need occasional on-site support - those with learning difficulties and physical disabilities.  
The aim is to help these vulnerable people lead an independent life in good quality, well 
equipped accommodation with access to on-site support as and when required. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
57362 - Demolition of existing building and erection of supported living accommodation (14 
one bedroom apartments) and Higher Complex Care accommodation (6 one bedroom 
apartments) together with access and landscaping at Former Whittaker House, Parsonage 
Street/Whittaker Street, Radcliffe. Approved with conditions - 19 May 2014. 
 
Adjacent site 
57363 - Part demolition of Whittaker House and construction of 11 no. affordable dwellings 
at Whittaker House, Whittaker Street, Radcliffe. Withdrawn - 20 June 2014. 
 

Page 54



57710 - Part demolition of Whittaker House and construction of 11 no. affordable dwellings 
at Former Whittaker House, Whittaker Street, Radcliffe. Approved with conditions - 6 August 
2014. 
 
Publicity 
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 17 September 2015. 
 
2 letters have been received from the occupiers of 8, 10 Parsonage Street, which have 
raised the following issues: 
• The location of the proposed building is unclear. 
• There would be no objection if the building is against the canal fence. 
• The proposal is unacceptable as is located against Parsonage Street and it would block 

views and light. 
• Entrance should be via Whittaker Street as per existing. 
• We need to know what individuals will be housed in the building and if our children will 

be at any risk. 
• The site access on Parsonage Street is not acceptable as there is not enough space for 

existing vehicles. 
• Whittaker Street is wider and has a car park and should be used. 
• The building will block out natural light and compromise privacy. 
• If this was a residential application, we would all have a copy of the plans. We have 

nothing but a letter from the Council. 
• The contractors are working on site, which is not allowed when planning has not been 

agreed. 
• Formally object to the plans. 
• Access to the canal will be restricted for Parsonage Street residents. 
• The plans should be changed or thrown out. 
• Why has groundworks begun when the plans have yet to be declined or approved? 
 
The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee meeting. 
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objections in principle. Further comments to be reported in the 
Supplementary report. 
Drainage Section - Comments awaited. 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a 
condition relating to contaminated land. 
Waste Management - No objections. 
Environment Agency - Comments awaited. 
Designforsecurity - No objections.  
United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to foul and 
surface water drainage.  
The Coal Authority - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to coal. 
GM Ecology Unit - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to nesting 
birds and an informative relating to invasive species. 
Canal & River Trust - No objections, subject to the inclusion of an informative relating to 
works near a canal. 
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
H4/2 Special Needs Housing 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/1 Sites of Nature Conservation Interest SSSI's NNR's 
EN6/4 Wildlife Links and Corridors 

Page 55



EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
EN8 Woodland and Trees 
EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting 
EN10/2 Riverside and Canalside Improvement in Urban Areas 
RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development 
RT4/7 The Manchester, Bolton and Bury Canal 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
CF1/1 Location of New Community Facilities 
CF3 Social Services 
SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle - Following revocation of the North West Regional Strategy on 20 May 2013, 
there is no statutory housing target for Bury. Work has commenced on the Greater 
Manchester Spatial Framework and this will bring forward a new statutory housing target for 
the Borough. This will subsequently be incorporated into Bury’s future Local Plan.    
 
In the meantime, the National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a material 
planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the 
supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. There is a 
particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a rolling five year 
supply of deliverable housing land.  
 
Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a 
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban 
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, 
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses. 
 
Policy H4/2 states that the Council will encourage the provision of special needs housing 
and it will be assessed with regard to the location of the site in relation to local shops, public 
transport, health facilities and community facilities; the gradient on site; car parking; amenity 
space and the design, layout and landscaping of the site. 
 
The site is located within the urban area and is surrounded by residential properties. As 
such, the proposal would not conflict with the surrounding land uses. The site did contain an 
existing building and as such, is previously developed land and there would be adequate 
infrastructure available. The site is located within walking distance of Radcliffe town centre 
and is close to a bus route. The issues of car parking and design and layout of the site will 
be assessed later in the report. Therefore, the proposed development would be acceptable 
in principle and would be in accordance with Policies H1/2 and H4/2 of the Bury Unitary 
Development Plan.  
 
Design and layout - Planning permission was granted for a single storey building to 
provide higher complex care in May 2014. Further investigations have revealed a large 
stormwater culvert passes underneath the southern part of the site. Due to the required 

Page 56



easements, the approved building for higher complex care cannot be constructed in the 
approved position.  
 
The proposed building would be traditional in design and would incorporate a pitched roof. 
There are a variety of buildings within the locality, but there is no prevailing type or design.  
The proposed building would be constructed from red brick, grey tile and reconstituted stone 
headers and cills, which would add visual interest to the elevations. Therefore, the proposed 
development would not be a prominent feature within the streetscene and would be in 
accordance with Policy H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
The area to the north of the proposed building would provide private amenity space and the 
level of provision would be acceptable. The proposed closed timber boarded fence would 
match the existing fencing in the locality and would not be a prominent feature within the 
streetscene. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies 
H2/1, H2/2 and EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Impact upon residential amenity - SPD6 provides guidance on aspect distances between 
residential properties and would be relevant in this case. 
 
The southern elevation of the proposed building would contain 4 windows at first floor level, 
which would all relate to a corridor. As such, these are not habitable rooms and there should 
be a minimum of 13 metres between the proposed building and the existing dwellings. 
 
There would be a minimum of 18.8 metres between the rear of Nos 12 - 16 Parsonage 
Street and the proposed building. This would be in excess of the aspect standard. 
 
There would be 14.7 metres between the rear of Nos 12 - 16 Parsonage Street and the 
single storey element of the proposed building. A 1.8 metre high close timber boarded fence 
would be erected on the boundary between the proposed building and the existing 
dwellings, which would screen the proposed window and would not impact adversely upon 
the amenity of the neighbouring properties. 
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not have a significant adverse impact upon the 
amenity of the neighbouring properties. 
 
Highways issues - The proposed development would be accessed from Parsonage Street 
and would link to the turning head. This access was established with the grant of planning 
permission (57362) in May 2014. There would be acceptable levels of visibility and the 
Traffic Section has no objections in principle, with further comments to be reported in the 
Supplementary Report. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with 
Policies H2/1 and H2/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum parking standards for a 1 bedroom unit is 1 
space per unit, which equates to 20 spaces. 
 
The proposed development would provide the same number of units as the previously 
approved scheme (57362) and would provide the same number of parking spaces - 15 
spaces. The proposed development is for people with learning difficulties and physical 
disabilities and as such, it is likely that car ownership would be low. The likely traffic 
generation would be from staff and visitors to the site. As such, given the close proximity to 
the town centre and public transport and the low level of car ownership, it is considered that 
the level of parking would be acceptable in this case. Therefore, the proposed development 
would be in accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and 
SPD11. 
 
Response to objectors 
The issues relating to loss of light and privacy, access from Parsonage Street and design 
and layout are dealt with in the main report.  
 

Page 57



The proposed development would be used to support vulnerable people with learning 
difficulties and physical disabilities, who would pose a minimal risk to the community. The 
proposed units would be staffed and the staff would offer support as and when required to 
residents to help them lead an independent life. 
 
Plans of the scheme are readily available to view. Planning permission was granted in May 
2014 and has been part implemented, which accounts for the commenced works. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered AL-90-001 P1, AL-90-002 P1, 

AL-20-001 P1, AL-20-001 P1 and the development shall not be carried out except 
in accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
3. Details/Samples of the (materials/bricks) to be used in the external elevations, 

together with details of their manufacturer, type/colour and size, shall be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development 
is commenced. Only the approved materials/bricks shall be used for the 
construction of the development. 
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity. 

 
4. No works shall be carried out to the trees that would disturb nesting birds between 

1st March and 31st August inclusive in any year. 
Reason. In order to ensure that no harm is caused to a Protected Species 
pursuant to policies EN6 – Conservation of the Natural Environment and EN6/3 – 
Features of Ecological Value of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment. 

 
5. A landscaping scheme shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local 

Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. It shall be 
implemented not later than 12 months from the date the building(s) is first 
occupied; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming severely damaged 
or becoming severely diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced by 
trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those originally required to be 
planted to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site and in the interests of 
visual amenity pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 
– Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

Page 58



 
6. No development shall commence unless or until details of foul and surface water 

drainage have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. The approved details shall be implemented prior to first occupation of 
the buildings hereby approved. 
Reason. To ensure a satisfactory means of drainage pursuant to Policy EN7/5 - 
Waste Water Management of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
7. The bin store indicated on approved plan reference AL-90-002 Revision P1 shall 

be provided before the development is brought into use/first occupied and shall 
subsequently be maintained therafter for this use. 
Reason. pursuant to the following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
8. The car parking indicated on approved plan reference AL-90-002 Revision P1 

shall be surfaced, demarcated and made available for use prior to the building 
hereby approved being occupied. 
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
9. No development shall commence unless or until details of foul and surface water 

drainage, including an assessment of potential SuDS options for surface water 
drainage have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. Only the approved details shall be implemented prior to occupation of 
the buildings hereby approved. 
Reason. To ensure a satisfactory means of drainage pursuant to Policy EN7/5 - 
Waste Water Management of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
10. The development hereby approved shall only be developed by or on behalf of the 

applicant as a supported living scheme (Class C3 of the Town and Planning Use 
Classes Order) as defined in Department of Health Guidance: ‘Supported living 
schemes: Regulated activities for which the provider may need to register’ and 
each and every one of the apartments constructed as part of the scheme shall 
subsequently be occupied only and at all times as supported living which meets 
the above definition.  
Reason - The proposed development has been granted given the particular 
circumstances of the applicant following a funding package drived from Housing 
Benefit Exempt Rents which provides an opportunity to promote increased 
supported living, but as a result a recreational contribution pursuant to 
Supplementary Planning Document 1 (Open Space, Sport and Recreation 
Provision in New Housing Development) will not be provided. This condition is 
thereby to ensure that in order to make the development acceptable in planning 
terms, as a result of not making a recreational contribution the whole development 
shall instead contribute to satisfying the need for supported living provision. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253 
5322

Page 59



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 59193

Site of Whittaker House
Whittaker Street, Radcliffe

1:1250



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

2

1

2

8

2

32

6

1

8

11

3

16

5

12

3a
5a

9

12a

63

1415

1

16

29

W
hitta

ke
r H

ouse

10

40

27

42

25

55

1a

37

47

1

45
Council Offices

52

33

31

22

25

28

2

2 to 8

43 to 45

1

26

14

33

36

23

13

5

43

8

14 to 20

9 t
o 1

1

37

15
 to

 2
1

35

10 to 12

39 to 41

1 to 7

23

1

13

16

24

6

35

38

25

31a

21

33

31

El Sub Sta29

10

4

12

PH

2

15

22

1

7
5

(d
isu

se
d)

Bolto
n and Bury 

Canal

Manchester,

(disused)
Reservoir

Yard

Builder's

Car Park

K
IN

G
M

O
O

R
 A

V
E

N
U

E

W
H

IT
T

A
K

E
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

L
A

N
D

O
R

E
 C

L
O

S
E

W
H

IT
T

A
K

E
R

 S
T

R
E

E
T

SHIREBROOK DRIVE

G
O

R
S

E
F
IE

L
D

 C
L
O

S
E

GREAT H
ALL C

LOSE

PARSONAGE STREET

P
A

R
S

O
N

A
G

E
 S

T
R

E
E

T

MATHER STREET

SEDDON S
TREET

S
E

D
D

O
N

 C
L
O

S
E

Path (um
)

Tow P
ath

Sheaf Field Walk

P
at

h 
(u

m
)

76.2m

76.8m

Viewpoints

1

2

3

Page 60



59193 

 

Photo 1 

 

Photo 2

 

Page 61



59193 

 

Photo 3

 

Page 62



P
age 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



 
 
  
 
Ward: Prestwich - Sedgley Item   06 

 
Applicant:  Absolute Dental 
 
Location: 111 Bury Old Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0EQ 

 
Proposal: Single storey extension at side; Two storey extension at rear; Entrance porch at 

front/side; External works and 2 no. additional parking spaces 
 
Application Ref:   59202/Full Target Date:  03/11/2015 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The site contains a two storey detached building which is constructed from red brick with a 
tile roof and is currently in use as a dentists' surgery. Planning permission was granted for 
the change of use from a dwelling to a dentist surgery in July 2006. The permission granted 
consent for 3 surgeries and the accommodation comprised a reception, waiting rooms, 
hygienist's room, meeting room and office. The opening hours were restricted to: 
• 9am-5pm Monday to Thursday 
• 8am-1pm Friday and alternate Saturdays 
• Closed on Sundays. 
 
There is a stepped access from the corner of Bury Old Road and Parksway and a ramped 
access along the gable elevation. Vehicular access is taken from Parksway and leads to a 
car park of 6 spaces and 1 disabled parking bay.  
 
There are residential properties to the north, south and west and the Woodthorpe public 
house is located to the east. Manchester Maccabi sports club is located to the south east. 
 
The proposed development involves the erection of a single storey side extension, a two 
storey rear extension, an entrance porch and alterations to the car park layout.  
 
The proposed single storey rear extension would be located to the north of the existing 
building and would be constructed form render. The proposed two storey extension would 
be located at the rear and constructed from render. The proposed porch would be located 
on the south-eastern corner of the building and would be constructed from render and 
glazing with aluminium panels. 
 
The pedestrian access via the ramp would remain as existing and the stepped access 
would be relocated in front of the door. Vehicular access would remain as existing and an 
additional space would be provided in the car park. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
46463 - Change of use form residential to dental surgery at 111 Bury Old Road, Prestwich. 
Approved with conditions - 26 July 2006. 
 
Publicity 
The neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 14 September 2015. 
 
1 letter of support has been received from the occupiers of 18 Chestnut Fold and 59 Higher 
Ainsworth Road (Radcliffe), which has raised the following issues: 
• Support the proposal as a patient from the practice.  
• Welcome the car park. 
• The surgery provides a good service to the community. 

Page 67



• The existing car park is a little small and welcome any additional spaces. 
 
3 letters have been received from the occupiers of 2, 3 Parksway, which have raised the 
following issues; 
• The constant coming and going and problems with parking are a nightmare. 
• The staff are encouraged to park on the road, limiting access for neighbouring residents. 
• The proposed single storey extension would encroach onto my property. 
• The proposed extension at the rear would reduce the size of the car park and make 

more people park on the road. 
• The building works would take a consideration amount of time. 
• The proposed single storey side extension will have a visual impact upon neighbouring 

properties and would be mainly on Parksway, not Bury Old Road. 
• It appears that more treatment rooms and therefore, staff have been added. As patient 

numbers are high, more people park outside existing dwellings causing problems for 
local residents. 

• An inconsiderate patient reversed into a parked car and damaged it. 
• The street is unsafe for children. 
 
The objectors and supporters have been notified of the Planning Control Committee. 
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to car 
parking. 
Drainage Section -  
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No comments.  
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
EC4/1 Small Businesses 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 
HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
CF1/1 Location of New Community Facilities 
CF4 Healthcare Facilities 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle - Policy CF1/1 states that proposals for new and improved community facilities 
will be considered with regard to the following factors: 
• impact upon residential amenity and the local environment; 
• traffic generation and car parking provision; 
• the scale and size of the development; 
• access to shops and other services; 
• the suitability of the chosen location in relation to the community; 
• accessibility by public and private transport; 
• the needs and requirements of the disabled. 
 
Policy CF4 states that improvements to existing, and proposals for new healthcare facilities 

Page 68



will generally be looked on favourably by the Council. 
 
The principle of a dentist's surgery was established with the grant of planning consent in 
July 2006. The proposed development would involve the extension of the existing facility, 
which would result in the provision of an additional surgery. This in turn would provide an 
improved service to local people. The proposed development would be accessible by public 
and private transport and the remaining issues of size, scale, impact upon residential 
amenity and the needs of the disabled will be discussed later in the report. Therefore, the 
proposed development would be acceptable in principle and would be in accordance with 
Policies CF1/1 and CF4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Design and layout - The proposed extensions would be modern in terms of design and 
would represent a clear addition to the property. The proposed extensions would be 
constructed from render, which would complement the existing property and add visual 
interest to the elevations. The proposed extensions would add a total of 32 square metres to 
the floorspace of the building and as such, it is considered that the proposed development 
would be appropriate in scale. Therefore, the proposed development would not be a 
prominent feature within the streetscene and would be in accordance with Policies EN1/2 
and CF1/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
The existing boundary hedge and replacement fencing along the Parksway frontage would 
help screen it visually from the street and neighbours at No.115 Bury Old Road and No.1 
Parksway. The daytime hours of opening of the surgery are considered to be reasonable 
and should not raise serious noise and disturbance issues. As such, the location of the 
surgery is unlikely to cause serious harm to the residential amenity of immediate 
neighbours.   
 
Impact upon residential amenity - The proposed development would be used in 
conjunction with the existing dentist surgery and would provide an additional consultancy 
room. The proposed development of an additional room would not increase the level of 
noise significantly and given the scale of the development would not have a significant 
adverse impact upon the amenity of the neighbouring properties in terms of noise. 
 
There would be 19 metres between the proposed single and two storey rear extension and 
the blank gable of No. 1 Parksway, which would be in excess of the aspect standard in 
SPD6. The proposed single storey extension would be level with the building line to the 
adjacent dwelling (No. 115 Bury Old Road) and as such, the proposed extension would not 
have an adverse impact in terms of loss of light or privacy upon the occupiers of this 
property. Therefore, the proposed development would not have an adverse impact upon the 
amenity of the neighbouring properties and would be in accordance with Policies CF1/1 and 
EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Highways issues - The proposed development would involve alterations to the layout of 
the car park, which would result in the provision of an additional 2 parking spaces from 7 to 
9. Given that the proposed development is located on a main bus route and is within 
walking distance of the Metrolink line and within a residential area which it serves, it is 
considered that the level of parking provision would be acceptable in this instance. The 
Traffic Section has no objections, subject to the inclusion of a condition relating to car 
parking. Therefore, the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies HT2/4, 
EN1/2 and CF1/1 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the proposed development 
would  not impact upon the existing vehicular access on Parksway. 
 
Access - The proposed development would include the provision of an ambulant staircase 
within the building, which is welcomed. The existing ramped access from the car park to the 
main entrance would be unaffected by the proposed development. Therefore, the proposed 
development would be accessible and would be in accordance with Policy HT5/1 of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Response to objectors 

Page 69



The issues relating to parking, access and visual impact have been addressed within the 
main report. The proposed single storey extension would be located on land owned by the 
applicant and in any case, land ownership is not a material planning consideration. The 
length of time of the building works is not a material planning consideration. 
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 
Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The Local Planning Authority worked positively and proactively with the applicant to 
identify various solutions during the application process to ensure that the proposal 
comprised sustainable development and would improve the economic, social and 
environmental conditions of the area and would accord with the development plan. 
These were incorporated into the scheme and/or have been secured by planning 
condition. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement 
in Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered Location plan, 1615 P(900), 1615 

E(100), 1615 E(101), 1615 P(100), 1615 P(101), 1615 P(204), 1615 E(204 and the 
development shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings 
hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
3. Details/Samples of the render to be used in the external elevations, together with 

details of the manufacturer and type/colour shall be submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is commenced. 
Only the approved materials shall be used for the construction of the development. 
Reason. No material samples have been submitted and are required in the 
interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory development pursuant to 
UDP Policy EN1/1 Visual Amenity. 

 
4. The surgery shall not be open outside 0800 hrs to 1800 hrs Monday to Saturday. 

Reason. To safeguard the amenities of the occupiers of nearby residential 
accommodation pursuant to Policies CF4 -  Healthcare Facilities and EC4/1 -  
Small Businesses of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  

 
5. The additional car parking indicated on approved plan reference 1615 P(900) shall 

be surfaced, demarcated and made available for use prior to the development 
hereby approved being occupied and thereafter maintained at all times. 
Reason. To ensure adequate off street car parking provision in the interests of 
road safety pursuant to Policy HT2/4 - Car Parking and New Development of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253 
5322

Page 70



PLANNING APPLICATION LOCATION PLAN 

Planning, Environmental and Regulatory Services

 No Window 

 No Window 

ADDRESS:

APP. NO 59202

111 Bury Old Road
Prestwich

1:1250



(C) Crown Copyright and database right (2015). Ordnance Survey 100023063.

LB

Woodthorpe

12
3

Surgery

8
4

11
7

56

10
9

11
5

2

1

11
1

4

2

7

31

99

PARKFIE
LD A

VENUE

PARKSWAY

86.6m

84.0m

Viewpoints

1

2
3

4

Page 71



59202 

 

Photo 1

 

Photo 2

 

Page 72



59202 

 

Photo 3

 

Photo 4

 

Page 73



P
age 74



P
age 75



P
age 76



P
age 77



P
age 78



P
age 79



P
age 80



 
 
  
 
Ward: Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth Item   07 

 
Applicant:  Morris Homes Limited 
 
Location: The Hollins, Haweswater Crescent, Bury, BL9 8LT 

 
Proposal: Substitution of house types to plots 3,4,11,20 & 21 following grant of planning 

permission ref. 56860 
 
Application Ref:   59224/Full Target Date:  06/11/2015 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Description 
The site is  a split level site, with a level plateau near the access from Church Meadow and 
the land slopes steeply towards Haweswater Crescent. The site has planning permission for 
a residential development of 21 dwellings, which was granted in December 2014.  The 
Haweswater Aqueduct passes through the site. The site did contain an office building, which 
has since been demolished and occupants relocated to Bury and Whitefield. There is a car 
park near the access onto Church Meadow and a landscaped area to the west. The site is 
some 2 - 3 metres higher than the residential properties to the north. 
 
The site is bounded by residential properties to all boundaries. 
 
Planning permission was granted in December 2014 for the construction of 21 dwellings. All 
of the dwellings would be detached and would be constructed from red brick with a tile roof. 
The site would be accessed from Church Meadow. 
 
The proposed development involves the substitution of house types for plots 3, 4, 11, 20 
and 21, as the position of the aqueduct was surveyed and plotted incorrectly. The proposed 
dwellings would be detached and would be constructed form red brick with a tile roof. The 
proposed access would be unaffected by the proposals. 
 
Relevant Planning History 
56860 - Erection of 21 no. detached dwellings at the Hollins, Haweswater Crescent, Bury. 
Approved with conditions - 19 December 2014. 
 
59242 - Non-material amendment following grant of planning permission 56860 for erection 
of 21 no. detached dwellings: Plots 7, 10, 11, 12, 12a, 14, 15 and associated access road 
located 2 metres away from existing dwellings at the Hollins, Haweswater Crescent, Bury. 
Approved - 16 October 2015. 
 
Publicity 
64 neighbouring properties were notified by means of a letter on 18 September 2015. 
 
4 letters have been received from the occupiers of 4, 19, 40 Haweswater Crescent and 64 
Church Meadow, which have raised the following issues: 
• There are a number of issues with the consideration of application for this site: 

• There is a second application (59242) , which I have not been notified of 
• The documentation states that the previously approved layout is N272/P/PL02 
• The United Utilities response (15/10/2014) states that the development must be 

carried out in accordance with N272/P/PL02 Rev A. 
• It now transpires that the layout approved under application 56860 does not meet the 

requirements of United Utilities. This is the second time that a layout has had to be 
amended to accommodate United Utilities, which is not a satisfactory state of affairs. 

Page 81



• The proposed plan (N272/P/PL02 Revision C is severely compromised by the 12 metre 
wide easement. The proposal attempts to place 21 units on a site, which is unsuitable 
for such density and does this by encroachment on the private amenity space of the 
existing Haweswater Crescent residents. 

• Plot 15 would be relocated by 3 metres to the west, which further compromises my 
amenity. In addition, the finished floor level would be 1 metre above existing site levels, 
which would result in a dominating and oppressive outlook.  

• The gable of plot 15 has overlooking windows and should be set back by at least 7 
metres to prevent loss of privacy. The proposed windows in the gable of plot 15 would 
provide a direct view into my garden, bedrooms, kitchen and lounge. 

• The outlook from No. 40 Haweswater Crescent would be unacceptable and dominated 
by the proposed dwelling leading to an oppressive feeling in all of these rooms.  

• Acknowledge that development is required to address the shortfall in housing numbers, 
but the proposed layout takes no account of the Council's policies. 

• Query whether the existing business has relocated within the borough of Bury in 
compliance with the previous approval. 

• The number of parking spaces for plot 3 has been reduced, which would lead to more 
cars parking on the road and further problems for existing residents. 

• We believe that the owners of plot 3 may decide to construct a garage under permitted 
development rules, which would contradict the condition relating to the minimum 
driveway lengths. 

• The only acceptable reason for these revisions is if there are unforeseen problems with 
the utilities and or/aqueduct. 

• Query which layout the developer has been working to whilst on site. 
• Morris Homes are trying to squeeze too many house son the site. 
• Plot 19 is too close to the fenceline and it would be better to remove plot 19 and space 

out plots 29 and 21. This would allow natural daylight to reach number 2 and 4 
Haweswater Crescent. 

• A large pine tree remains on the boundary to No. 64 Church Meadow. This should be 
removed as it blocks light and the roots are lifting the paving stones. 

 
The objectors have been notified of the Planning Control Committee.  
 
Consultations 
Traffic Section - No objections in principle. Any further comments to be reported in the 
Supplementary Report. 
Drainage Section - Comments awaited. 
Environmental Health - Contaminated Land - No objections, subject to the inclusion of 
conditions relating to contaminated land.  
United Utilities - No objections, subject to the inclusion of a conditions relating to foul and 
surface water drainage.  
 
Unitary Development Plan and Policies 
EC2/2 Employment Land and Premises 
H1/2 Further Housing Development 
H2/1 The Form of New Residential Development 
H2/2 The Layout of New Residential Development 
EN1/2 Townscape and Built Design 
EN1/3 Landscaping Provision 
EN6 Conservation of the Natural Environment 
EN6/3 Features of Ecological Value 
EN7 Pollution Control 
EN7/2 Noise Pollution 
EN7/5 Waste Water Management 
EN8 Woodland and Trees 
EN8/2 Woodland and Tree Planting 
RT2/2 Recreation Provision in New Housing Development 
HT2/4 Car Parking and New Development 

Page 82



HT5/1 Access For Those with Special Needs 
SPD1 Open Space, Sport and Recreation Provision 
SPD6 Supplementary Planning Document 6: Alterations & Extensions 
SPD11 Parking Standards in Bury 
NPPF National Planning Policy Framework 
 
Issues and Analysis 
The following report includes analysis of  the merits of the application against the relevant 
polices of both the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and the adopted Bury 
Unitary Development Plan (UDP) together with other relevant material planning 
considerations. The policies of the UDP that have been used to assess this application are 
considered to be in accordance with the NPPF and as such are material planning 
considerations. For simplicity, just the UDP Policy will be referred to in the report, unless 
there is a particular matter to highlight arising from the NPPF where it would otherwise be 
specifically mentioned. 
 
Principle - Following revocation of the North West Regional Spatial Strategy on 20 May 
2013, there is no statutory housing target for Bury. Work is continuing on Bury's Local Plan, 
which will bring forward a new statutory housing target. 
 
In the meantime, the National Planning Policy Framework should be treated as a material 
planning consideration and it emphasises the need for local planning authorities to boost the 
supply of housing to meet local housing targets in both the short and long term. There is a 
particular emphasis, as in previous national planning guidance, to identify a rolling five year 
supply of deliverable housing land. 
 
Policy H1/2 states that the Council will have regard to various factors when assessing a 
proposal for residential development, including whether the proposal is within the urban 
area, the availability of infrastructure and the suitability of the site, with regard to amenity, 
the nature of the local environment and the surrounding land uses. 
 
The principle of residential development on this site was established with the grant of 
planning permission for 21 dwellings in December 2014. The site is located within the urban 
area and in a residential area and would not conflict with the surrounding land uses. The 
site did contain a building and is previously developed land. Therefore, the proposed 
development would be acceptable in principle and would be in accordance with Policy H1/2 
of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Design and layout - The proposed dwellings for plots 3, 4, 11, 20 and 21 would be 
detached and would be two storeys in height and of similar design to the surrounding 
houses on the development. The provision of bay windows, canopies, porches, brick eaves, 
stone cills and headers to windows help to break up and animate the elevations. The 
existing dwellings are constructed from a variety of materials, including red brick, beige brick 
and render. The proposed dwellings would be constructed from red brick with a grey tile 
roof, which would match some of the surrounding properties and would complement the 
remaining dwellings. Therefore, the proposed development would not be unduly prominent 
within the locality and would be in accordance with Policies H2/1, H2/2 and EN1/2 of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Impact upon surrounding area - The proposed dwellings would have a side or rear 
garden and have an acceptable level of private amenity space. There would be space within 
the rear or side gardens for bin storage. The proposed boundary treatments would be as 
already approved elsewhere on the site comprising: 
• a 1.8 metre high screen wall to the rear gardens, which are immediately adjacent to the 

access road 
• a 1.8 metre high timber boarded fencing between the remaining rear gardens 
• the boundary to the north of the site would be marked by a 1.2 metre high 3 rail ranch 

type fence.  
The proposed boundary treatments would be acceptable and would not be unduly 

Page 83



prominent feature within the locality. Therefore, the proposed development would be in 
accordance with Policies H2/1, H2/2 and EN1/2 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Impact upon residential amenity - SPD6 provides guidance on aspect standards between 
residential properties and would be relevant in this case. 
 
There would be a minimum of 20.1 metres between the front elevation of plot 3 and the 
properties on Haweswater Crescent. There would be 15.9 metres between the rear of plot 
11 and the gable of No. 7 Mere Close. Both of these distances would comply with the 
aspect standards in SPD6. 
 
All of the relationships within the proposed development would comply with the relevant 
aspect standards. 
 
Therefore, the proposed development would not have an adverse impact upon the amneity 
of the neighbouring properties. 
 
Haweswater Aquaduct - The proposed development has been redesigned to ensure that 
none of the proposed built development would be located on top of the aqueduct or the 
easements required by United Utilities. United Utilities has no objections to the proposal, 
subject to the inclusion of conditions relating to foul and surface water drainage. Therefore, 
the proposed development would be in accordance with Policies EN7/4 and EN7/5 of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan. 
 
Highways issues - The access to the proposed development would remain as existing and 
would be taken from Church Meadow. The proposed access would have acceptable levels 
of visibility at the junction of the proposed access with Church Meadow. The Traffic Section 
ha no objections to the proposal in principle and further comments will be reported in the 
Supplementary Report.  
 
Parking - SPD11 states that the maximum number of parking spaces is  3 spaces per 4 
bed dwelling and 2 spaces per 3 bed dwelling. For plots 3, 4, 11, 20 and 21, this would 
equate to a maximum of 13 spaces. 
 
12 spaces would be provided and 1 dwelling would have access to a double garage in 
addition to the parking spaces proposed. As such, the provision of 14 parking spaces would 
comply with the parking standards. Therefore, the proposed development would be in 
accordance with Policy HT2/4 of the Bury Unitary Development Plan.  
 
Response to objectors 
• The issues relating to privacy and parking provision have been addressed in the above 

report. 
• Application 59242 is a non-material amendment application for the re-positioning of an 

internal access road and there is no statutory obligation to undertake any publicity for 
this type of application. 

• The proposed layout has to be amended as the position of the aqueduct and therefore, 
the required easements was not plotted correctly. It is therefore, reasonable to revise 
the scheme and duly consider it. 

• The number of dwellings and the density of the development is the same as previously 
approved, which was considered to be acceptable.The layout maintains and complies 
with adopted policy. 

• The amendments to the position of plot 15 are the subject of a further application, which 
is to be submitted shortly and neighbouring properties will be notified by means of a 
letter on receipt of a valid application. As such, the issues relating to the relationship of 
plot 15 and No. 40 Haweswater Crescent are not material to this application.  

• The business did relocate within the borough of Bury.  
 
  
Statement in accordance with Article 35(2) Town and Country Planning (Development 

Page 84



Management Procedure) (England) (Amendment) Order 2015 
 
The proposal complies with the development plan and would improve the economic, social 
and environmental conditions of the area. It therefore comprises sustainable development 
and the Local Planning Authority worked proactively and positively to issue the decision 
without delay. The Local Planning Authority has therefore implemented the requirement in 
Paragraphs 186-187 of the National Planning Policy Framework. 
 
Recommendation:  Approve with Conditions 
 
Conditions/ Reasons 
 

1. The development must be begun not later than three years beginning with the date 
of this permission. 
Reason. Required to be imposed by Section 91 Town & Country Planning Act 
1990. 

 
2. This decision relates to drawings numbered N272/P/PL02 C, N272/HTBOL/01, 

N272/HTBOL/02, N272/P/HTELY/01, N272/P/HTELY/02 and the development 
shall not be carried out except in accordance with the drawings hereby approved. 
Reason.  For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure a satisfactory standard of 
design pursuant to the policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan listed. 

 
3. No development shall commence unless and until:- 

• A contaminated land Preliminary Risk Assessment report to assess the 
actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks at the site 
shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where actual/potential contamination and/or ground gas/landfill gas risks have 
been identified, detailed site investigation and suitable risk assessment shall be 
submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority; 

• Where remediation/protection measures is/are required, a detailed 
Remediation Strategy shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the 
Local Planning Authority. 

Reason.  The scheme does not provide full details of the actual contamination 
and subsequent remediation, which is required to secure the satisfactory 
development of the site in terms of human health, controlled waters, ground gas 
and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy Framework 
Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
4. Following the provisions of Condition 3 of this planning permission, where 

remediation is required, the approved Remediation Strategy must be carried out to 
the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority within agreed timescales; and 
A Site Verification Report detailing the actions taken and conclusions at each 
stage of the remediation works, including substantiating evidence, shall be 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
development being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  

 
5. Any soil or soil forming materials brought to site for use in garden areas, soft 

landscaping, filling and level raising shall be tested for contamination and 
suitability for use on site.  Proposals for contamination testing including testing 
schedules, sampling frequencies and allowable contaminant concentrations (as 
determined by appropriate risk assessment) and source material information shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to 
any soil or soil forming materials being brought onto site, and; 
The approved contamination testing shall then be carried out and validatory 

Page 85



evidence (soil descriptions, laboratory certificates, photographs etc) submitted to 
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the development 
being brought into use. 
Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health, controlled waters and the wider environment and pursuant to National 
Planning Policy Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural 
environment.  

 
6. All instances of contamination encountered during the development works which 

do not form part of an approved Remediation Strategy shall be reported to the 
Local Planning Authority (LPA) immediately and the following shall be carried out 
where appropriate:    
 
• Any further investigation, risk assessment, remedial and / or protective works 

shall be carried out to agreed timescales and be approved by the LPA in 
writing; 

 
•  A Site Verification Report detailing the conclusions and actions taken at each 

stage of the works including validation works shall be submitted to, and 
approved in writing by, the LPA prior to the development being brought into 
use. 

Reason. To secure the satisfactory development of the site in terms of human 
health and the wider environment and pursuant to National Planning Policy 
Framework Section 11 - Conserving and enhancing the natural environment. 

 
7. The materials shall be: 

• Ibstock Leicester Weathered Multi 
• Russell Grampian Slate Grey 
Reason. In the interests of visual amenity and to ensure a satisfactory 
development pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - Townscape and Built Design of Bury 
Unitary Development Plan. 

 
8. Notwithstanding the submitted plan, a landscaping scheme shall be submitted to, 

and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to the 
commencement of the development. The landscaping scheme shall include details 
of the proposed types of planting and distances from the easement. It shall be 
implemented not later than 12 months from the date the building(s) is first 
occupied; and any trees or shrubs removed, dying or becoming severely damaged 
or becoming severely diseased within five years of planting shall be replaced by 
trees or shrubs of a similar size or species to those originally required to be 
planted to the written satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority. 
No planting should take place within the easement strip, unless specified on the 
approved landscaping scheme. 
Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the planting in relating to the 
easement and to secure the satisfactory development of the site in the interests of 
visual amenity and to ensure protection of the aqueduct pursuant to Policy EN1/2 - 
Townscape and Built Design and EN8/2 – Woodland and Tree Planting of the Bury 
Unitary Development Plan and Section 10 of the National Planning Policy 
Framework. 

 
9. No development shall commence unless or until details of a scheme for the 

disposal of foul and surface water drainage  has been submitted to and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme must include an 
assessment of potential SuDS options for surface water drainage with appropriate 
calculations to support the chosen solution. The approved details shall be  
implemented prior to first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved. 
Reason. The scheme does not provide calculations to support the chosen design 
and to ensure a satisfactory means of drainage pursuant to Policy EN7/5 - Waste 
Water Management of the Bury Unitary Development Plan and the NPPF. 

Page 86



 
10. No development shall commence unless or until a Method Statement for the 

protection of the aqueduct during demolition and construction has been submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The Method Statement 
shall include details of the measures to protect the aqueduct during 
1. The demolition of existing structures,  
2. The construction stages of the road/ footways and the residential dwellings. 
The Method Statement must include proposals for reinforcing the crossing points 
along the service roads to ensure they are protected from heavy loads and must 
be in accordance with the United Utilities document 'Standard Conditions for works 
adjacent to pipelines'.  
The demolition and construction works must be carried out in accordance with the 
approved Method Statement. 
Reason. The scheme does not provide full details of the protection measures and 
to ensure the protection of the aqueduct and water supply pursuant to Section 10 
of the National Planning Policy Framework. 

 
11. Notwithstanding the details indication on approved plan reference N272/P/PL02 

Revision A, no development shall commence unless and until full details of the 
following have been submitted to and agreed in writing with the Local Planning 
Authority: 
• access alterations on Church Meadow incorporating the provision of a footway 

on the easterly side of the former car park access, removal of the existing 
gates, gateposts and appropriate sections of boundary wall in order to form 
pedestrian accesses on both sides of the estate road, demarcation of the limits 
of the adopted highway and all necessary alterations to existing highway 
drainage, street lighting and associated remedial works; 

• access alterations on Haweswater Crescent incorporating the full 
refurbishment of the existing footway abutting the site in order to accommodate 
the reinstatement of the redundant site access opposite No. 21, formation of 
the footway crossings serving Plots 1 -3, 5 & 6 and the sub-station, 
demarcation of the limits of the adopted highway and all necessary alterations 
to existing highway drainage, street lighting and associated remedial works; 

• street lighting scheme for the residential development including any 
alterations/improvements required on Church Meadow and Haweswater 
Crescent in the vicinity of the site; 

• swept path analysis of the proposed estate road to ensure a refuse collection 
vehicle can pass a private car and manoeuvre at the turning head; 

• visibility splays in accordance with the standards in Manual for Streets 
appropriate for a speed of 25mph at the junction of the site access with Church 
Meadow with no obstructions above the height of 0.6m within them; 

• adequate bin collection points/hardstandings located clear of the adopted 
highway agreed with Cleansing Services to serve Plots 4, 7, 8, 10, 11 and 15 - 
17. 

The details subsequently approved shall be implemented to the written satisfaction 
of, and to a programme and specification to be agreed with, the Local Planning 
Authority. 
Reason. The scheme does not provide details and to ensure good highway design 
in the interests of road safety and to maintain the integrity of the adopted highway 
pursuant to the following Policies of the Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
12. A minimum hardstanding of 5.5m measured between the highway boundary and 

any proposed garage doors shall be provided and thereafter maintained. 
Reason. To enable a vehicle to stand clear of the highway whilst the garage doors 
are opened and to allow adequate space to maintain a vehicle clear of the 
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to Policy H2/2 - The Layout of 
New Residential Development of the Bury Unitary Development Plan. 

Page 87



 
13. The turning facilities indicated on the approved plan reference N272/P/PL02 

Revision A (or similar provision that enables construction traffic to enter and leave 
the site in a forward gear agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority) shall 
be provided before the development is brought into use and shall subsequently be 
maintained free of obstruction at all times. 
Reason. To minimise the standing and turning movements of vehicles on the 
highway in the interests of road safety pursuant to the following Policies of the 
Bury Unitary Development Plan: 
Policy H2/1 - The Form of New Residential Development 
Policy H2/2 - The Layout of New Residential Development. 

 
For further information on the application please contact Helen Longworth on 0161 253 
5322 

Page 88



Page 89



59224 

 

Photo 1

 

Photo 2

 

Page 90



59224 

 

Photo 3

 

Photo 4

 

Page 91



P
age 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DECISION OF: 

 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 

 
27 October 2015 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
DELEGATED DECISIONS 

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
DAVID MARNO 

  
 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
COUNCIL  
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

This paper is within the public domain 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
The report lists: 
Recent delegated planning decisions since the last PCC 

 
OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION 

 
The Committee is recommended to the note the report 
and appendices 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?  Yes   

Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations: 

 
Executive Director of Resources to advise 
regarding risk management 

 
Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources: 

 
N/A 
 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
No  
 

 
Considered by Monitoring Officer: 

 
N/A 
 
 

 
Wards Affected: 

 
All listed 

 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 
N/A 

 

Agenda 
Item 

 
REPORT FOR DECISION 

5 

Page 97

Agenda Item 5



TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 
 

Chief Executive/ 
Strategic Leadership 

Team 

Executive 
Member/Chair 

Ward Members Partners 

 
 

   

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council  
 
 

   

    
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
 
This is a monthly report to the Planning Control Committee of the delegated planning 
decisions made by the officers of the Council.  
 
2.0 CONCLUSION  
 
That the item be noted. 
 
 
 
List of Background Papers:-None 
 
Contact Details:- 
 
David Marno, Head of Development Management  
Planning Services, Department for Resources and Regulation 
3 Knowsley Place 
Bury BL9 0EJ 
 
Tel: 0161 253 5291 
Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk 
  
 
 

Page 98

mailto:d.marno@bury.gov.uk


Planning applications decided using Delegated Powers 
Between  and  21/09/2015 18/10/2015 

   
 
 

Bury East Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 02/10/2015 

Erection of building to contain 3 no. restaurant units (Class A3) and associated public realm 
works 

Site of former Sol Viva Building, Clerke Street, Bury, BL9 0PL 
FUL App. Type: 59009 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 22/09/2015 

Change of use from bookmakers (Class A2) to public house (Class A4) 

30 - 32 Haymarket Street, Bury, BL9 0AY 
FUL App. Type: 59093 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 01/10/2015 

2 No. sets of non-illuminated acylic letters; 4 No. non-illuminated fascia signs 

2 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 0DT 
ADV App. Type: 59097 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 01/10/2015 

Listed building consent for 2 no. sets of non illuminated acylic letters: 4 no. non-illuminated 
fascia signs 

2 Manchester Road, Bury, BL9 0DT 
LBC App. Type: 59098 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 09/10/2015 

Replacement of flat roof at rear; New entrance and 2 no. windows at side and 2 no. windows 
at rear 

197 Rochdale Road, Bury, BL9 7BB 
FUL App. Type: 59106 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/10/2015 

Listed building consent for replacement of 2 no. internal automated teller machines (ATMs) 

2-4 Market Street, Bury, BL9 0AN 
LBC App. Type: 59150 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Two storey extension at rear 

67 The Rock, Bury, BL9 0NB 
FUL App. Type: 59207 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Bury East - Moorside Ward: 

16/10/2015 Page 1 of 10 

Page 99



Refused 12/10/2015 

Two storey extension at side (resubmission) 

33 Burrs Lea Close, Bury, BL9 5HT 
FUL App. Type: 59125 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Change of use from social club (sui generis) to 2 no. dwellings (C3) 

132 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 6DX 
FUL App. Type: 59139 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 01/10/2015 

Single storey extension at rear 

270 Hornby Street, Bury, BL9 5DS 
FUL App. Type: 59155 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Bury East - Redvales Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 01/10/2015 

Single storey extension at rear (Resubmission of 58148) 

32 Grosvenor Street, Bury, BL9 9BJ 
FUL App. Type: 59165 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not required 28/09/2015 

Prior notification for single storey extension at rear 

34 Keswick Drive, Bury, BL9 9LT 
GPDE App. Type: 59171 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 01/10/2015 

Single storey extension at rear (resubmission of 58878) 

102 Alfred Street, Bury, BL9 9ED 
FUL App. Type: 59173 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 06/10/2015 

Single storey extension at side and rear 

33 Derwent Drive, Bury, BL9 9LS 
FUL App. Type: 59174 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Lawful Development 16/10/2015 

Cerificate of lawfulness for proposed loft conversion and roof extension at the rear 

1 Hendon Drive, Bury, BL9 9TT 
LDCP App. Type: 59315 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Bury West - Church Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 22/09/2015 

First floor extension at side 

29 Euxton Close, Bury, BL8 2HY 
FUL App. Type: 59073 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

16/10/2015 Page 2 of 10 

Page 100



Approve with Conditions 24/09/2015 

2 No. internally illuminated fascia signs; 2 no. externally illuminated wall mounted hoardings; 
1 no.  externally illuminated poster display unit; 1 no. directional sign;  1 no. internally 
illuminated 6 metre pylon sign; 1 no. internally illuminated 7 metre high dual post sign 
(resubmission) 

Lidl, (Site of former gasworks), Victoria Street, Bury, BL8 1LE 
ADV App. Type: 59077 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Refused 12/10/2015 

Creation of new vehicular access (retrospective) 

215 Ainsworth Road, Bury, BL8 2RU 
FUL App. Type: 59110 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/10/2015 

2 No. internally illuminated fascia signs and 1 no. non illuminated fascia sign 

Unit 1 Victoria Street Retail Park, Victoria Street, Bury, BL8 1LE 
ADV App. Type: 59122 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 29/09/2015 

First floor extension at side 

10 Wadebridge Drive, Bury, BL8 2NN 
FUL App. Type: 59156 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Conversion of existing flat roof at side to pitched and new front porch 

6 Preesall Close, Bury, BL8 2JL 
FUL App. Type: 59157 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Outline Application - Demolition of existing dwelling and outbuildings and construction of new 
dwelling 

The Nurseries, Leigh Lane, Bury, BL8 1RL 
OUT App. Type: 59167 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Outline Application - Demolition of existing bungalow and outbuildings and erection of new 
bungalow 

The Nurseries, Leigh Lane, Bury, BL8 1RL 
OUT App. Type: 59169 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Two storey extension at side and dormers at front and rear 

3 Whitecroft Drive, Bury, BL8 2TN 
FUL App. Type: 59184 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/10/2015 

Two storey extension at side 

4 Winmarleigh Close, Bury, BL8 2TA 
FUL App. Type: 59189 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve 16/10/2015 

Removal of 70 metres of hedgerow 

Elton Reservoir, High Bank, Bury, BL8 2BR 
HRN App. Type: 59223 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

16/10/2015 Page 3 of 10 

Page 101



Bury West - Elton Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 16/10/2015 

Siting of storage container 

Burrs Country Park, Woodhill Road, Burrs, Bury 
FUL App. Type: 59068 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/10/2015 

Construction of building for car sales and associated parking/display area 

Evans Halshaw Ford Bury, Crostons Road, Bury, BL8 1AA 
FUL App. Type: 59076 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 06/10/2015 

Replacement front dormer 

32 Hebburn Drive, Bury, BL8 1ED 
FUL App. Type: 59187 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Lawful Development 16/10/2015 

Certificate of lawfulness for proposed single storey rear extension 

12 Valley Avenue, Bury, BL8 1FA 
LDCP App. Type: 59285 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

North Manor Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 30/09/2015 

Demolition of existing garage/store; Single storey side extension to accommodate 
physiotherapy business; Roof extension with dormers at front and rear; New front porch; New 
front boundary wall 

14 Robin Road, Summerseat, Bury, BL9 5QP 
FUL App. Type: 58602 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/09/2015 

Variation of condition no.2 (approved plans) of application 57092 

7 Crag Avenue, Summerseat, Bury, BL9 5NZ 
FUL App. Type: 58868 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/09/2015 

First floor extension and single storey extension at front 

20 Larkfield Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4QJ 
FUL App. Type: 59041 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 29/09/2015 

Single storey extension at rear and fencing to rear garden 

2 Thorn Street, Summerseat, Bury, BL9 5PN 
FUL App. Type: 59069 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Required and Refused 29/09/2015 

Prior notification for single storey extension at rear 

40 Newcombe Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9UT 
GPDE App. Type: 59133 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

16/10/2015 Page 4 of 10 

Page 102



Approve with Conditions 21/09/2015 

Demolition of single storey side garage & erection of two storey side extension and single 
storey rear extension 

1 St Clair Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4EU 
FUL App. Type: 59136 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/10/2015 

Extension to existing garage at front 

198 Bolton Road, Hawkshaw, Bury, BL8 4JF 
FUL App. Type: 59168 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 06/10/2015 

Two storey extension at side/rear with rear juliet balcony; Single storey extension at rear 

845 Walmersley Road, Bury, BL9 5LE 
FUL App. Type: 59175 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not required 15/10/2015 

Prior notification for proposed single storey extension at rear 

8 Westgate Avenue, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9SS 
GPDE App. Type: 59233 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Lawful Development 01/10/2015 

Lawful development certificate for proposed single storey extension at rear 

5 Lancaster Drive, Bury, BL9 6RJ 
LDCP App. Type: 59284 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prestwich - Holyrood Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 01/10/2015 

Demolition of existing buildings currently used for oil recycling business and livery yard; 
Replacement with 4 no. dwellings and conversion and extension of traditional barn to form a 
single dwelling (resubmission) 

Brook Farm, Simister Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2SB 
FUL App. Type: 58827 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Refused 09/10/2015 

Erection of 2 no. semi-detached dwellings 

Land at rear of 62 Peveril Close, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6NR 
FUL App. Type: 59105 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/10/2015 

Single storey extensions to side and rear 

69 St Margarets Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 2QT 
FUL App. Type: 59172 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prestwich - Sedgley Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Front porch extension (retrospective) 

3 Fairway, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0JF 
FUL App. Type: 59016 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

16/10/2015 Page 5 of 10 

Page 103



Approve with Conditions 21/09/2015 

Loft conversion incorporating front and rear dormers 

72 Sheepfoot Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0DN 
FUL App. Type: 59091 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Single storey extension at rear; Formation of new vehicular access 

2 Castle Hill Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0FR 
FUL App. Type: 59159 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 06/10/2015 

Two storey extensions at side and rear; Porch extension (resubmission) 

10 Craigwell Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0EF 
FUL App. Type: 59163 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Required Refused - Ext 12/10/2015 

Prior notification for single storey extension at rear 

98 Albert Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 0LU 
GPDE App. Type: 59304 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prestwich - St Mary's Ward: 

Refused 24/09/2015 

Outline application for residential development of 1 no. dwelling with all matters reserved 

Land at side of 122 Venwood Road and 16 River View Close, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9UH 
OUT App. Type: 58283 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 30/09/2015 

Erection of 8 bed extension to Junction 17 Unit; Demolition to the northern elevation of 
Gardener Unit and erection of 11 bed extension; Relocation and provision of car parking on 
site, temporary access road. 

Prestwich Hospital, Bury New Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3BL 
FUL App. Type: 58824 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Two storey extension at side and single storey extension at rear 

34 Agecroft Road East, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9RT 
FUL App. Type: 58992 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 22/09/2015 

Two storey extension at side/rear and single storey extension at rear 

110 St Anns Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9GJ 
FUL App. Type: 59019 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/09/2015 

Single storey and two storey extensions to side and rear 

7 Rainsough Close, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9YQ 
FUL App. Type: 59096 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 06/10/2015 

Single storey extension at side and rear 

7 Agecroft Road East, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9RQ 
FUL App. Type: 59121 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

16/10/2015 Page 6 of 10 

Page 104



Refused 02/10/2015 

First floor extension at rear (resubmission) 

4 Gardner Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3HS 
FUL App. Type: 59124 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 22/09/2015 

Demolition of porch and single storey extension at rear and erection of two storey extension at 
side/rear 

133 Hilton Lane, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9XJ 
FUL App. Type: 59129 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Dormer at rear 

Alpine Lodge, St Anns Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9GD 
FUL App. Type: 59158 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/10/2015 

First floor extension at side; Single storey extension at rear (resubmission) 

49 Agecroft Road East, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9RQ 
FUL App. Type: 59176 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Single storey rear extension and new roof to existing rear extension 

10 Ladythorn Avenue, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9RW 
FUL App. Type: 59196 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Single storey extension at side 

44 Clifton Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 3HQ 
FUL App. Type: 59204 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/10/2015 

Single storey extension at side with porch at front 

1 Hope Road, Prestwich, Manchester, M25 9GX 
FUL App. Type: 59218 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Radcliffe - East Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Change of use of stables and carriage store to dwelling 

Gorse Hill Stables, Starling Road, Bury, BL8 2HJ 
FUL App. Type: 59094 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Change of use from dwelling (C3) to mixed use - dwelling house (C3) and childminding (D1) -   
Continuation of use of approved application 55452) 

26 Great Hall Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4DA 
FUL App. Type: 59117 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 15/10/2015 

Rebuilding of barn to create 2 no. dwellings 

Coney Green Farm, Coney Green, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 4ER 
FUL App. Type: 59140 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

16/10/2015 Page 7 of 10 

Page 105



Radcliffe - North Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 24/09/2015 

Two storey extension at side; Single storey side/rear link extension to existing detached 
garage 

2 Saltram Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3XD 
FUL App. Type: 59099 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 21/09/2015 

Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of single storey side extension 

16 Tipton Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3WZ 
FUL App. Type: 59138 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not required 01/10/2015 

Prior notification for single storey extension at rear 

9 Penrice Close, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 3UL 
GPDE App. Type: 59179 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Radcliffe - West Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 29/09/2015 

Dormer at front; Extension of existing dormer at rear with juliet balcony; Erection of detached 
double garage; Minor external alterations 

304 Stand Lane, Radcliffe, Manchester, M26 1JB 
FUL App. Type: 59075 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Ramsbottom + Tottington - Tottington Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Erection of 2 no. dwellings; Erection of replacement stables 

Howarths Farm, Watling Street, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3QR 
FUL App. Type: 58950 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 16/10/2015 

Change of use from two dwellings to one dwelling; single storey extensions to the front, rear 
and side and new boundary wall 

317 - 319 Turton Road, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3QF 
FUL App. Type: 59145 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/09/2015 

Single storey extension at rear 

6 Heather Bank, Tottington, Bury, BL8 4FB 
FUL App. Type: 59151 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Prior Approval Not required 02/10/2015 

Prior notification for single storey extension at rear 

4 Lyndon Close, Tottington, Bury, BL8 3EY 
GPDE App. Type: 59198 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Lawful Development 29/09/2015 

Certificate of lawfulness for proposed demolition of existing lean to external store and erection 
of single storey rear lean to extension to kitchen 

4 Owlerbarrow Road, Bury, BL8 1RD 
LDCP App. Type: 59236 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

16/10/2015 Page 8 of 10 

Page 106



Ramsbottom and Tottington - Ramsbottom Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 01/10/2015 

Demolition of existing extension at rear and erection of single storey extension at rear; 
Installation of new first floor window to gable elevation 

13 Verna Street, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9HZ 
FUL App. Type: 59057 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Conversion of existing conservatory at rear to single storey extension; Installation of ground 
floor window to side elevation and alterations to ground floor window at front 

24 Marlborough Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9YU 
FUL App. Type: 59065 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 24/09/2015 

Creation of additional vehicular access 

Hillcrest, Helmshore Road, Holcombe, Bury, BL8 4PD 
FUL App. Type: 59081 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 29/09/2015 

Single storey extension at rear with porch at side 

19 Palmerston Close, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 9YN 
FUL App. Type: 59132 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 21/09/2015 

Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of single storey side extension 

98 Whalley Road, Shuttleworth, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL0 0DE 
FUL App. Type: 59141 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 06/10/2015 

Erection of single storey extension to existing dog boarding kennels 

Hillside Kennels, Pike Farm, Bury Old Road, Bury, BL9 6SY 
FUL App. Type: 59142 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Demolition of existing conservatory and erection of single storey extension to side 

Lumb Carr House, Lumb Carr Road, Ramsbottom, Bury, BL8 4NH 
FUL App. Type: 59143 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Whitefield + Unsworth - Besses Ward: 

Refused 24/09/2015 

Single storey garage extension at side and extension to porch at front 

51C Albert Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8NN 
FUL App. Type: 59103 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Whitefield + Unsworth - Pilkington Park Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 01/10/2015 
184 - 188 Bury New Road, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 6QF 

FUL App. Type: 58913 Application No.: 
Location: 

16/10/2015 Page 9 of 10 

Page 107



 

Variation of condition no. 2 (approved plans of planning permission 57586) to add a single 
storey extension at rear and brickwork to front. 
Discharge of conditions 1 (start date), 3 (materials), 4(access improvements), 5 (pedestrian 
visability splay), 6 (car park) and 7 (access improvements) 

Proposal: 

Whitefield + Unsworth - Unsworth Ward: 

Approve with Conditions 24/09/2015 

Demolition of existing garage colony and erection of new single storey garage 

Land at rear of 34 Rufford Drive, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8PL 
FUL App. Type: 59011 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 12/10/2015 

Conversion of existing garage with first floor extension above, single and two storey extensions 
at rear with detached garage and extended patio (resubmission) 

23 Hathaway Road, Bury, BL9 8EG 
FUL App. Type: 59123 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Approve with Conditions 06/10/2015 

Demolition of entrance porch and garage and erection of single storey extension at side/rear 

14 Bloomfield Drive, Bury, BL9 8JX 
FUL App. Type: 59128 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Split Decision 29/09/2015 

Proposal A: Certificate of lawfulness for a proposed single storey extension at rear; 
 
Proposal B: Certificate of lawfulness for a proposed porch/canopy at front 

117 Rufford Drive, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8PD 
LDCP App. Type: 59210 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

Lawful Development 29/09/2015 

Certificate of lawfulness for proposed single storey rear extension 

42 Rufford Drive, Whitefield, Manchester, M45 8PL 
LDCP App. Type: 59244 Application No.: 

Location: 
Proposal: 

 88  Total Number of Applications Decided: 

16/10/2015 Page 10 of 
 

Page 108



 1 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
DECISION OF: 

 
PLANNING CONTROL COMMITTEE 

 
DATE: 

 
27th October 2015 

 
SUBJECT: 

 
PLANNING ENFORCEMENT 

 
REPORT FROM: 

 
HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT MANAGEMENT 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
DAVID MARNO – HEAD OF DEVELOPMENT 
MANAGEMENT 

  
 
TYPE OF DECISION: 

 
COUNCIL (NON KEY DECISION) 
COUNCIL 
 

FREEDOM OF 
INFORMATION/STATUS: 

This paper is within the public domain  
 
 
 

 
SUMMARY: 

 
This Report provides statistical information on 
Enforcement activity between 1st July 2015 and 30th 
September 2015. 
 
 

 
OPTIONS & 
RECOMMENDED OPTION 

 
The Committee is recommended to note the Report  
 

 
IMPLICATIONS: 

 

 
Corporate Aims/Policy 
Framework: 

 
Do the proposals accord with the Policy 
Framework?     No  

Statement by the S151 Officer: 
Financial Implications and Risk 
Considerations: 

 
Executive Director of Resources to advise 
regarding risk management                N/A 

 
Statement by Executive Director 
of Resources: 

 
                                                        N/A 
 

 
Equality/Diversity implications: 

 
                               No  
(see paragraph below) 

 
Considered by Monitoring Officer: 

 
                                                       N/A 
              
 

Agenda     6 
Item 

 REPORT FOR INFORMATION 

Page 109

Agenda Item 6



 2 

 
Wards Affected: 

 
                                                       ALL 

 
Scrutiny Interest: 
 

 
                                                       N/A 

 
TRACKING/PROCESS   DIRECTOR: 
 

Chief Executive/ 
Strategic Leadership 

Team 

Exective 
Member/Chair 

Ward Members Partners 

 
 

   

Scrutiny Committee Committee Council  
 
 

   

    
 
1.0 BACKGROUND 
  
1.1 This report presents a brief analysis of Enforcement performance and 

activity for the period between 1st July 2015 and 30th September 2015 and 
includes table 1 (below) showing a statistical analysis of performance 
over that period. 

 
1.2 All Enforcement Notices served and Actions taken are considered against 

the provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998. In taking account of 
whether to serve an Enforcement Notice or take Action, which is a 
discretionary power afforded to Councils under the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 (as amended), consideration is taken as to whether 
the individual’s rights are affected and whether it is expedient to serve 
such a Notice or take Action against the individual. 

 
1.3 Any Enforcement Notice served is considered as to whether it is 

expedient to do so in accordance with the Council’s adopted Unitary 
Development Plan and the National Planning Policy Framework Guidance.  

 
1.4 Table 1 provides a detailed breakdown of the number and type of notice 

issued and other actions such as prosecutions during the quarter period. 
It also includes a performance standard in terms of the speed of the 
responses to initial site visits having been carried out. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 110



 3 

Table 1 
 
  Period 1/07/15 to 30/09/15 
Number of Complaints received                       158 

% where initial site visit within 10 working days 100% 
 (average time to visit 3 days) 

Number of complaints resulting in a breach of Planning Control 77 
(49% of complaints resulted in 
a breach of planning control) 

Number of Enforcement Notices served 2 

Number of Stop Notices served 0 

Number of Breach of Condition Notices served 3 

Number of Section 215 Untidy land/building Notices served  0 

Number of Temporary Stop Notices served 0 

Number of Planning Contravention Notices served 0 

Number of Injunctions served 0 

Number of Prosecutions made  0 

Number of Prosecutions referred to Legal for Prosecution 2 

Number of Formal Cautions issued 0 

Number of Works in Default actions taken 0 

Number of High Hedges Remedial/Tree Replacement Notices 
served 

0 

 
 
 
2.0 ISSUES - CURRENT STAFFING LEVELS AND WORKING 

ARRANGEMENTS 
 
2.1 The Enforcement Team currently comprises a Senior Planning 

Enforcement Officer and a Planning Enforcement Officer, who are 
employed full time. The Officers deal with complaint cases on a Borough 
wide basis, in accordance with the Council’s Customer Charter for the 
Planning Enforcement Service.  

 
2.2    WORKLOAD/COMPLAINT CASES RECEIVED AND TRENDS 

IDENTIFIED 
 
2.3 Table 1 above sets out statistical information for the period 1st July to 

30th September 2015.  
 
2.4 Members may be interested to note that during this period, we received 

158 complaints, that’s 33 (or 26%) more new cases compared to the 
same period in 2014 where we received 125 complaints. Out of the 158 
complaints 77 resulted in breaches of planning control following 

Page 111



 4 

investigation, an increase of 31% compared to the same period last year 
where 59 of the total complaints resulted in breaches of planning control. 
The vast majority of these cases in this period were again resolved 
without recourse to formal Enforcement Action, having been resolved by 
other means such as negotiation, or where appropriate, the invitation of 
a planning application. In comparison to the same period in 2014, the 
number of initial site visits carried out within 10 working days increased 
from 96% to a 100% and the average number of days to carry out an 
initial site visit reduced from 4 days to 3. 

 
2.5 PROSECUTIONS  
 
2.6    It has also been noted that the trend of Enforcement Notices not being 

complied with within the compliance periods is continuing, resulting in a 
continued need to prepare prosecutions for Legal required to ensure 
such Notices are complied with. Prosecutions are made as a last resort 
following written requests for compliance with notices. 

 
2.7 Members will be interested to know that within the period 2 cases were 

referred to Council’s Legal Section with instructions to commence 
prosecution proceedings. These include the following cases: 

 
Summerfield Bungalow, Summerfield Road, Prestwich 
This case relates to an existing garage building which had an 
unauthorised extension built which doubled its size. The Planning 
Enforcement Team gained entry to the building and found it fitted out 
with a kitchen, bedroom and bathroom. This was a clear indication that 
the owner was intending to use/rent out this building as a separate 
dwelling house, a so called “bed in a shed”. This breach of planning 
control resulted in an Enforcement Notice being issued in October 2014 
requiring the demolition of the extension. The owners’ failure to comply 
with the notice and lack of communication the Council following 
numerous requests to comply with the notice resulted in further action 
being necessary. 
 
Land Adjacent to M66 Exit Slip Road 
This case relates to a local business displaying a large advertisement 
hoarding on land adjacent to the M66, the land is within the Green Belt 
and the advertisement is being displayed without Advertisement 
Consent, which is an offence. Despite requests to remove the 
advertisement the company have failed to do so and prosecution 
proceedings are necessary.  

 
The results of the cases will be reported in the next enforcement report. 

 
3.0   FORMAL NOTICES SERVED/ACTIONS TAKEN 
 
3.1 During the quarter period, the number of formal Notices served totalled 

5 with 2 being referred to the Legal Department for prosecution. 
 
 
4.0 CONCLUSION 

Page 112



 5 

 
4.1 The period has seen a 26% increase in the number of new enforcement 

complaints requiring investigation, compared to the same period last 
year. The majority of cases continue to be resolved without recourse to 
formal action. There has been an increase the in the number of initial 
site visits carried out within 10 working days, all initial site visits where 
carried out within 10 working days with an average site visit time of 3 
days, compared to 4 days in the same period last year. 

 
4.2 The service provided is primarily a reactive one in that we respond to 

complaints received from members of the public. The enforcement 
section is continuing to encounter a rise in cases of none compliance 
with enforcement notices served, which is resulting in more prosecutions 
needing to be considered and carried out in order to secure compliance. 
The need to thoroughly investigate complaints, draft and issue the 
formal notices, monitor existing enforcement notices served for 
compliance and preparing prosecution files for failure to comply is 
continuing to have a big impact upon the workload of the Enforcement 
Team. This of course is being continually monitored to ensure 
appropriate resourcing is maintained. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Contact Details:- 
 
David Marno 
Head of Development Management 
Regulation and Resources  
3 Knowsley Place 
Duke Street 
Bury BL9 0EJ 
 
Tel: 0161 253 5291 
Email: d.marno@bury.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 29 September, 2015
	4 Planning Applications
	5 Delegated Decisions
	6 Planning Enforcement
	3.0   FORMAL NOTICES SERVED/ACTIONS TAKEN




